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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

—

Fiscal Years (In thousands, except per share data) April 28, 2002 April 29, 200! April 30, 2000
Sales §7,356,119 $5,899,927 $5,150,469
NetIncome! 196,886 223,513 75,112
Net Income Per Diluted Share! 1.78 2.03 76
Weighted Average Diluted Shares Outstanding 110,419 110,146 98,772
Additional Information:

Capital Expenditures $§ 171,010 $ 144,120 $ 100,383
Depreciation Expense 139,942 124,836 109,893
Working Capital 798,426 635413 609,857
Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 1,387,147 1,146,223 1,187,770
Shareholders’ Equity 1,362,774 1,053,132 902,909
EBITDA > - 558,165 509,735 310,895
Book Value Per Share 12.41 10.05 8.21
Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity3 1 16.2% 18.4% 10.4%

1 Fiscal 2002 net income and net income per diluted share include unusual items which net to an increase of $L.2 millien, or 5.01 per
diluted share. Fiscal 2001 net income and net income per diluted share include unusual gains of $48.6 miliion, or $.44 per diluted share.

The fiscal 2001 gains relate to the sale of IBP, inc. common stock, net of related expenses, and the sale of a plant.

2 EBITDA is computed using income before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.

3 The fiscal 2002 computation excludes a gain on the sale of IBP, inc. common stock and a loss as a result of a fire at o hog farm.
The fiscal 2001 computation excludes gains from the sole of IBP inc. common stock, less related expenses, and the sole of a plant.

n




TO OUR
SHAREHOLDERS

STRATEGIC STEPS
BROADEN OUR FOUNDATION

BRAND AWARENESS
FOR SMITHFIELD AND
LEAN GENERATION IS GROWING

1 am pleased to report that in fiscal 2002 Smithfield Foods reported
another year of record earnings from operations—our ﬁfth_in the last
six. Earnings rose 12 percent to $196 million, or $1.77 per diluted
share, prior to unusual items. I take great pride in these results given
the decline in hog prices and other adverse industry conditions we
faced the latter part of the year. Most gratifying is the fact that the
growth in earnings occurred in our meat processing group, where
operating profits increased nearly 50 percent over the prior year while
hog production group profits declined only slightly.

It is also gratifying to note that once again FORTUNE magazine
recognized our company as the top food stock in total return to
shareholders for the last 10 years. This marks the third consecutive
year that we have been recognized as either the No. 1 or No, 2

performer in this category.

Fiscal 2002 represented a significant year in the company's history as
we broadened our base business through several strategic inijtiatives.’
They include the following:

B Heightening awareness of the Smithfield and Smithfield Lean
Generation brands in targeted major markets;

B Entry into the beef industry through the purchase of Moyer Packing
Company and Packerland Holdings;

B Acquisition of four processed meats compani;:s in the rapid]y
expanding fully-cooked and prepared foods categories;

B Creation of the Smithfield Deli Group to strengthen our position
in the $13 billion deli market, as measured by retail prices; and

B Addition of several key executive positions within our corporate
structure to drive growth in key segmenits of the business and achieve

synergistic savings.

During this past fiscal year, the company launched a targeted
marketing campaign to significantly broaden the awareness of our
Smithfield and Smithfield Lean Generation Pork brands in the New
York, Philadelphia, and Chicago markets, Through innovative
advertising, we have not only achieved much greater brand awareness
but also increased our penetration with several key retailers in these
very important markets.

The company acquired a 50 percent interest in case-ready company
Pennexx Foods, Inc,, with the goal of becoming a multi-protein supplier
to the Northeast market. OQur Smithfield pork brands, beef from the

recently acquired Moyer Packing, and the case-ready capabilities of
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VALUE-ADDED ACQUISITIONS
OFFER NEW OPPORTUNITIES

WE'VE ACHIEVED A BETTER
BALANCE BETWEEN FRESH AND
PROCESSED MEATS

Pennexx provide a powerful combination to serve the Greater New
York and Philadelphia markets. Anticipating future growth, we have
already initiated a major plant expansion project with Pennexx.

In the Chicago area, we won the fresh pork business of Jewel-Osco,
a leading retailer in that market, Smithfield now stands at the forefront
of branded fresh pork programs, which we believe, will provide a
springbo_ard fpr growth of our processed meats.

The Packerland acquisition adds to our multi-protein capabilities in
the Midwest. We are now the fifth-largest beef producer in the United

States and well-positioned to offer case-ready beef as well as pork.

The acquisition of RMH Foods, a leading producer of high-quality,
precooked pork and beef entrées, allowed our other companies to
quickly add this category of products to their branded programs. We
believe that the precooked category can compete with home-cooked
meals and provide delicious solutions for time-starved families.
Through the acquisition of The Smithfield Companies and Stadler’s
Country Hams, we solidified our position as the marketer of world-
famous Genuine Smithfield Hams. With the addition of Quik-to-Fix,
we broadened the company’s product lines into fully-cooked and fully-
prepared products beyond the pork category and entered distribution
channels beyond our traditional markets. Just after our year-end, the
company acquired Stefano Foods, a marketer of Italian convenience
foods, including stuffed pizza rings and calzones. Our new Smithfield
Deli Group will market these products, which represent a significant
point of difference in the deli case. In addition to broadening our
product line, these products provide both new marketing opportunities

and margin enhancement over traditional product categories.

Our strategy of balancing fresh pork and processed meats production
with a focus on improving margins produced highly favorable results.
Processed meats' percentage of revenues rose to 53 percent from

50 percent. This is significant progress compared to our fresh and
processed meats mix following the 1992 opening of our Bladen County
plant. After the plant became fully operational, its substantial fresh
pork production pushed processed meats' percentage of revenue down
to 37 percent. We continue to approach our goal of consuming all of
our raw materials internally for value-added products, rather than

selling them on the open market.
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SMITHFIELD DELI GROUP WILL
LEVERAGE PROCESSED MEATS

A STRONGER MANAGEMENT TEAM
POSITIONS US FOR GROWTH

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS ENJOYED
A SOLID YEAR

The deli represents an important growth area in most supermarket
chains, and we believe that coordinating our product offerings through
one organization, Smithfield Deli Group, can enhance our market share
significantly. This group was created to leverage our processed meats
product lines across all our operating companies and become an
important deli supplier to major retailers and food service customers.
We hired Rick Goodman, one of the top professionals in the industry,
to lead the group.

Smithfield Foods has expertenced dramatic growth in recent years in
terms of sales, breadth, and diversity of our operations, stretching our
management team thin. By strengthening our corporate management,
we ensure that all areas of the business receive appropriate attention.

We have always managed the company in a manner that allows the
subsidiaries to operate independently and with an entrepreneurial
spirit. We will continue to do so. However, we also want to achieve
synergies from our operating companies wherever possible. To that
end, we named C. Larry Pope as president and chief operating officer.
Previously chief financial officer, Larry has worked closely with me on
all of the acquisitions we have made over the last 20 years. He knows
our businesses intimately and has the respect of all our managers. He
has taken over day-to-day management responsibilities, allowing me to
focus on the longer-term strategic direction of Smithfield Foods.

We named Joseph W, Luter, IV, an executive vice president to
coordinate sales and marketing programs for major retail and food
service customers, He also heads a new corporate initiative to
maximize synergies among our operating companies. Robert Sharpe I
returned to the company as president of our international operations.
Bob has considerable experience in managing operations overseas.

‘We also named Lawrence L. Shipp as vice president, logistics, Mansour
Zadeh as chief information officer, and Doug Anderson as vice
president, rendering. In short, we have a deep, experienced

management team to head the company.

Our international operations had a very solid and profitable year.
Schneiders, with its large market share in Canada, turned in another
strong performance, Our French operations produced record earnings on
record volume, Animex in Poland continued to suffer losses as demand
and industry conditions remained depressed. However, we have seen

positive signs following a management change in February, and we

&)




WE'RE THE INDUSTRY LEADER IN
ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION

WE TAKE FINANCIAL
STEWARDSHIP SERIOUSLY .

believe that the long-term outlook for our Polish investment is f.avorable.j
‘We also continue to invest in our joint venture in Mexico, with
considerable expansion in hog production and plant operations
planned for fiscal 2003. During the year, we also entered into a joint
venture in China with a respected Belgium-based partner. We foresee

long-term opportunities as the markets in China continue to mature.

On the environmental front, Smithfield Foods has now received ISO
14001 certification for all our U.S. hog farms east of the Mississippi.
‘We are the world's only agricultural livestock operation to earn this
coveted recognition. Moreover, we expect to have our other U.S. farms
ISO-certified by the end of the 2002 calendar year, with all processing
facilities to follow within two years. ISO certification ensures that our
farms have developed clearly defined methods for monitoring and
measuring the environmental impact of their activities and for
identifying potential problems. Dennis Treacy, who joined us after
heading Virginia’s department of environmental quality, will be guiding
these and our many other environmental efforts. His arrival is
confirmation of our environmental principle of 100 percent
compliance, 100 percent of the time,” in addition to my personal goal

of establishing Smithfield Foods as the environmental leader.

We are fully aware of the current air of suspicion in the marketplace
regarding financial reporting ethics. Let me state for the record that
the management of Smithfield Foods takes financial reporting very
seriously. The company has always followed a policy of conservative,
but appropriate, reporting and maintained an attitude of open and full
disclosure to our shareholders. We regard financial stewardship as one
of the highest responsibilities of management. While pressures to
perform for shareholders will always be there, we will remain steadfast
in maintaining the highest leve) of integrity in all our communications
with shareholders and the financial markets.

This past year, we successfully renewed and increased our five-year
revolving credit facility nearly one year in advance of its expiration.
In addition, we issued $300 million of senior unsecured notes in the
marketplace. Both of these debt placements were made after
September 11, and both issues were substantially oversubscribed.
We believe this speaks highly of the integrity of our management.

While the company acquired 4,636,000 treasury shares for almost
$95 million during the last year, we reduced the company’s overall

debt-to-total capitalization level from 52 percent to 50 percent. We will
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WE'RE FOCUSED ON
LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE

continue to repurchase shares when our stock is out of favor. However,
we will continually monitor our debt leverage to ensure we maintain a
proper level of underlying capital to guarantee the long-term financial

security of this company.

As we begin fiscal 2003, hog prices remain sharply depressed and will
continue to remain significantly below year-ago levels through the fall
of 2003. These lower hog prices ére ;'xegatively impacting profitability
at our production operations and are not being recovered fully in our
meat processing group. While these forces are adversely affecting our
results in the near term, we remain very confident that the longer-term
strategic steps that we have taken will result in higher earnings when
these markets return to normal levels.

1 have often noted that sharcholders who are overly concerned with
quarterly results probably should not invest in Smithfield Foods. Market
variables beyond our control make it very difficult to ensure steady
growth on a quarter-to-quarter, and even year-to-year, basis. That said,
few stocks can match our performance over the past §, 10, or even 20
years. According to the most recent FORTUNE 500 rankings, our 18
percent average annual return over the past decade puts us ahead of
all of our peers in the food industry. In fact, our stock’s outstanding
performance is one of the reasons we made FORTUNE'S 2002 list of
“America’s Most Admired Companies.”

I continue to be extremely proud of the 26 percent average annual
compound rate of return to shareholders that Smithfield Foods
has delivered since current management took control in 1975. In the
last 15 years, our stock has outperformed the S&GP 500 Index by more
than 500 percent.

In closing, our fundamentals are very solid and, in fact, have
strengthened significantly from even last year. We have a very clear
strategy for growth in an industry where growth has proven difficult to
achieve. | have every reason to believe that our long-term outlook is
very bright and that Smithfield Foods will continue to produce

outstanding returns for our shareholders.
Sincerely,

/ﬂ.wwﬂ

Joseph W. Luter, Ill, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
July 12, 2002
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YEAR IN REVIEW

THE SMITHFIELD PACKING COMPANY

JOHN MORRELL & CO.

A focus on branding, value-added products, and broader distribution
provided some of the past year's major themes, Over the next several
pages, we bring you up-to-date on specific successes, initiatives, and

challenges at each of our subsidiaries.

Walk into your favorite supermarket and chances are you won'’t have

far to look for Smithfield-branded fresh and processed meats.

“Smithfield Premium branded packaged processed meats volume -

climbed 17 percent during the year, with bacon up 25 percent, cold
cuts up 41 percent, and hot dogs up 63 percent. Marinated fresh pork
volume grew 50 percent and will likely increase by another 25 percent
in the coming year as new flavors are introduced.

“These gains are largely the result of strong marketing programs in
the Northeast and Midwest,” notes Smithfield Packing Company
President Lewis Little. “We launched an extensive ad campaign that

has really heightened awareness of the Smithfield brand among

_retailers-and consumers.”

In the Chlcago area, Jewel Osco supermarkets now carry a full line

" of Smiithfield Lean Generation Pork products ln the Northeast sales of

a branded case-ready version distributed through )omt venture partner

Pennexx Foods climbed 40 percent. !

a “We re readymg marinated versions of Smlthﬁeld Lean C-eneranon
Pork as well," says Little. “This product is alread) pnzed for its low fat
content and quality, and we expect an enthusiastic consumer response
to broadening the line.”

Tapping into the precooked meats category's explosive growth,
Smithfield Packing also successfully launched its line of Smithfield
Premium Entrées in 12 major markets. Currently available in six
ﬁﬁeties—wo each of pork, beef, and chicken—another six will appear
on supermarket shelves in late 2002.

On the international front, fresh pork sales to Japan rose
12 percent. Moreover, in a first for branded U.S. fresh pork, a product
bearing the Smithfield name will soon be available in Japan's 181

Ito Yokado stores through Sumitomo Corporation.

The past year’s results offer proof positive that John Morrell & Co.
knows how to keep its customers satisfied. Expanding sales 1o existing
customers were largely responsible for the company’s 4 percent volume
gains in branded processed meats. In the fresh pork arena, sales of
moisture-enhanced Tender N Juicy jumped 12 percent,

High-quality, whole-muscle hams, new zipper-packaged versions of

(12)




lunch meats and hot dogs, and bite-sized appetizers were among the
year’s individual standouts. With the successful mid-year launch of
Convenient Cuisine, John Morrell entered the pre'cooked, refrigerated
entrées category. Sales surpassed initial projections, and the cc;mﬁany
expects significant volume growth in the coming year.

“Consumer demand for upscale, non-frozen entrées is really driving
this category’s growth,” says John Morrell President Joe Sebring.
-| “Convenient Cuisine is now in national distribution, and the product-
has scored high marks for taste among cdﬁsumers."

The company’s precooked foods expanéion can be seen among its
subsidiaries as well. [owa Quality Meats will soon produce precooked
pork for the foodservice market, while.a retail line of Curly’s-branded

barbecue products is imminent.*

D

PACKERLAND HOLDINGS Packerland Holdings, which built its reputation providing beef solutions
one customer at a time, has been busy since joining Smithﬁela Foods
in October 2001. Foodservice giant SYSCO, for one, has continuéd to
turn to the Green Bay-based company és the exclusive supplier for its
SYSCO Imperial boxed beef, < . .
In retail, Packerland fulfills the private-label beef needs of Ralph's
supermarkets, and it recently entered the case-ready arena with
private-label beef for the Meij.‘er chain 1n the Michigan market. The
company also expanded its role as a ﬁecf supplier to sister cbmpany
John Morrell & Co., and it suc_c_essfaily assumed the management of
Moyer Packing Company, Smithfield’s other recéﬁf beef acquisitior;. ‘
For the coming year, Packerland is set to launch an all-harural -
product under the Smitﬁﬁeld Natural Beef brand. Free of hormones - ,
and antibiotics, it will initially be avaifable in the western United SFa{tes

for select retail and foodservice outlets.

Pork Processing Group Revenue by Source (

SMITHFAELD FOQDS (OMPANYWIDE 3 . B .
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GWALTNEY

- ~vo!ume growth in our premxum line of Gwaltney spxral shced ham

SCHNEIDERS

“The cattle.being raised for Smithfield Natural are high energy fed,
which means that this product will be superior in tendemess and taste '
to any other natural beef currently on the market,” says Packerland
President Rich Vesta.

Over the past five years, Gwaltney has transformed itself from a mid-

Atlantic brand to one with national reach. Today, Gwaltney bacon., pork

"I'sausage, sliced luncheon meats, and franks are sold in 48 'statesand | '

Puerto Rico. With expanded distribution and new producg
innoduot@ons, sales volumes of Gwaltney-l?randed meats cﬁmbed 20
percent dim‘ng the past yeé: 'anc_l achieved double-digit gains in seven
of eiéht core categories. Factoring in the company’s many popular

ré'g;onal brands—Aberdeen, Valleydale, and Esskay among them—

 branded products now account for 74 percent of revenue,

“It has been a great year for our branded processed meats, from the

oominﬁed success of Gwaltney 40% Less Fat Bacon to the 37 ﬁercent i

G\valmey Presuient Tlm Seely

ong 1ts new products Gwaltney began marketmg two prermum
_moked boneless hams to complement its bone-m Spll'a] ham and .
on. hne The-company also successfully launched a lme of :

Ie m 12 ﬂavors mcludmg honey ham and honey

B : turkey breast In- the Balnmore market Esskay mtroduced n:s third

’| Oriole- branded product—a chicken frank—and signed a hcensmg

agreement to produce an all-beef frank under the Redskins brand.

With the acquisition of The Smithfield Companies in July 2001,
Gwalgney is now the excluswo producer of Genuine Smithfield Ham.
In the coming year, Séely expects to leverage this produot’s wide
appeal throuéh new packaging and line extensions.

“We’re excited about the recent acquisition of Stadler’s Country
Hams as well,” he adds. “Stadler’s has been a pioneer in the climate-
controlled curing process and makes the highest quality, most

consistent country ham produced in the United States today.”

Schneiders continues to solidify its position as one of Canada’s leading

supermarket brands. Processed meats volume climbed a healthy

9 percent as its wieners, sliced meats, and frozen entrées each claimed

a spot among the country’s 100 best-selling grocery items. Schneiders

also became Canada’s market leader in the growing lunchkits category.
“We're delighted with the phenomenal success of Hot Stuffs as well,

which have become the national market leader in the frozen portable

16




ANIMEX &

KRAKUS FOODS INTERNATIONAL

PATRICK CUDAHY

meal category only nine months after introduction,” says Schneiders
President Doug Dodds. “This pocket-style entrée really hit the mark on
flavors and appeals to the consumer’s desire for something tasty and
convenient. We've leveraged its success by adding breakfast flavors,
and we're introducing Lean Stuffs, a low-fat version.”

Other successful introductions included Asian Express, marinated,
fully cooked pork available at West Coast Costco stores, and extensions
to the Heritage 1890 line of slow-cooked, whole-muscle products for-
the deli counter.

Value-added baked goods and poultry products account for nearly
40 percent of Schneider’s earnings. Poultry eamings climbed 30
percent as the company continued to focus on fully cooked items such
as nuggets, wings, and breasts for the retail and foodservice markets.

“Moreover, we have plenty of capacity in all areas to support
growth, including our new CDN $45 million processed meats plant in

Saskatoon,” adds Dodds.

'| Warsaw-based Animiex; home 0f the famed Krakus ham, contended

| with difficult industry qondjtioh_s;‘duﬁng the past year, However, the

company continues to position itself for Poland's eventual European

Union 'enti'y. When this occurs~iikely by 2004—Animex’s attractive
‘cost structure stands.to make it the lowest-cost fresh meat producer on

*| the ‘continent.

Working with local hog farmers, the combany began irhporting NPD
sows from the United Kingdom during the year. This will provide
Animex with a steady source of raw materials for products that should
appeal to Western European tastes.

Through its close working relationship with Animex, Krakus Foods
International continues to be the largest U.S. importei- of genuine
Polish hams. In its first full year of control over all Animex products
sold in the United States, Krakus Foods successfully established a direct
sales structure to cover all key markets. In the coming year, the
company will capitalize on the strength of the Krakus brand by intro-

ducing three new deli hams as well as a line of presliced deli meats.

Significant growth in all core businesses resulted in another record year
for Patrick Cudahy, with volume climbing 6 percent and revenue up

11 percent. Sales volume of precooked bacon skyrocketed 50 percent
as foodservice customers continued to recognize the product’s value in
reducing preparation time and food safety concerns. Precooked sausage

and presliced ham also enjoyed healthy foodservice gains, with sales
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! for each up more than 30 percent, Retail bacon sales climbed 15
percent, an impressive feat given the category’s modest performance.

“For that we can thank expanded distribution in the Midwest and
our bacon’s distinctive Sweet Apple-Wooed Smoke flavor,” says Patrick
Cudahy President Roger Kapella. “A newly introduced maple-honey
flavor has also been: well-received by consumers.”

A S25 millionv plémt expansion, completed in May 2002, will ensure
ST =+ | that Patrick Cudahy keeps up with product demand. The 110,000 ~ -
square foot addition increases precooked bacon's capacity by 40
percent and dry sausage's by 25 percent. On the new-product front, the
company has high expectations for three Patrick’s Pride ham varieties

for the deli case—honey, Black Forest, and Sweet Apple-Wood Smoke.

SMITHFIELD FRANCE French subsidiaries SBS, Imperator, and Jean d’Erguet pbsted banner
' processed meats gains during the past year, particularly through
growth in private label sales to European hypermarkets. All enjoyed.

expanding. margins as well, .in part by having selected.items made by ‘

sxster company ‘Animex in: Poland Smlthﬁe]d s French and Pohsh

i operauons are a!so leveragmg their combmed buymg power to

‘negotlate advantageous terms with suppllers i _—

o Q‘U‘!K-'TOV-FIX EEL T SR e 'A]though ﬂnanmally troub]ed when purchased in July 2001, ka To :
: ’ - o Fix prowded an ideal vehlcle for Smxthﬁe[d s growing participation in’
the ptjecpoked fopds category. QuikTo-Fix’s range of fully cooked
foodservice products includes such items as pub burgers, chil, soups,
stews, and breaded steak and chicken patties.

In the nine months following its acquisition, a new management
team has made significant progress in stabilizing operations and

rebuilding customer relationships. Sales of Quik-To-Fix's popular pub

Branded Fresh Pork as a Percentage
of Fresh Pork Volume
SHITHFELD FO0S DCMESTIC OPERATIONS — 1 %

40%
PEACENTAGE OF AVAILABLE LOINS, BUTTS, AN RIES, ADJUSTED FOR 8ONING

A%

6%

2%

13%
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NORTH SIDE FOODS

PENNEXX FOODS

RMH FOODS

burgers climbed 52 percent during this period. The company's
increasing retail focus is paying off as well. In May 2002, it began

manufacturing a line of private-label precooked burgers for Kroger.

From Maine to Florida to as far west as Indiana, North Side Foods
continues to be a leading supplier of fully cooked sausage and sliced
bacon to McDonald's. Despite 9/11, combined sales to the Golden
Arches and foodservice customers grew by more than 4 percent’in
volume. North Side enjoyed double-digit profit gains as well.

“We were really pleased with the performance of our Ember Farms
brand of sausage links and patties,” notes North Side President Robbie
Hofmann. “It benefited from expanded distribution and increased sales
to SYSCO and other existing customers.”

Food safety concerns have made North Side’s fully cooked products
a favorite among customers. During the year, the company brought an
automated packaging system online that takes its approach to food
safety to the nextlevel. . .

~ “Now no one handles our sausage from the time the raw materials |
enter the ﬁlahi ur;ti‘]‘t};e ;;roduct is sealed in a box,” says Hofmann.
“Since the sys;ém uses an inner-seal bag now required by rﬁost

customers, this sh_duld open up new sales opportunities as well.”

Fifty-percent. owne'd'by Smithﬁeld Foods, Pennexx Foods is the premier
supplier of branded and private-label éase-ready meat in the densely
populated No&heast. The three-year-old company saw revenue jump
211 percent to $42 million in the 2001 calendar year. ShopRite and
Pathmark are among the growing number of supermarket chains that
turn to Pennexx for case-ready pork, beef, lamb, and veal.

“Some of our rétail customers have completely converted to case-
ready, and we're addressing virtually all their needs,” says Pennexx
President Mike Queen.

Pennexx markets case-ready versions of Smithfield Lean Generation
and Tender 'n Easy fresh pork, Moyer Packing's Steakhouse Classic
fresh beef, and other products under its own Cassidy brand. Anticipat-
ing rapid growth, Pennexx moved into a state-of-the-art plant in

Philadelphia in July 2002 that quadruples its case-ready capacity.

Award-winning dishes like Homestyle Pork Roast and Top Sirloin in
Bourbon Sauce are just two of the mouthwatering reasons why RMH
Foods is a leader in precooked, refrigerated entrées. One of the newest

additions to Smithfield Foods, RMH’s fiscal 2002 revenues climbed
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MURPHY-BROWN

75 percent to $14 million. Distribution of its flagship Quick & Easy
brand jumped 50 percent to 4,500 retail outlets nationwide as Winn-
Dixie, Dominick’s, QFC, and other supermarket chains came on board.
“Nearly 70 percent of U.S. consumers believe that convenience and
speed are critical in dinner preparation, whic}) is why our category is
by far the fastest-growing in the retail meat business,” explains RMH

President Jonathan Rocke. “With our focus on taste and quality, RMH

"is' making the products that péoplé Wwould ‘cook from scratch if they

had the time.” ‘

RMH also produces John Morrell's Convenient Cuisine brand and is
set to launch private label entrée lines for several leading supermarket
chains. No wonder, then, that sales are projected to more than double

in the coming year.

Despite a late-year decline in hog prices, the Murphy-Brown hog

: producnon group’ 5 $272 mllhon 1n operatmg income again led
- ~Sm1thﬁeld Foods i in proﬁtabtllty e

| 111ty o ralse h and reduce

‘ mona]ny rates Ag says Murphy-Brown Pres:dent Jeny Godwm’ “We ve

also made a lot of smdes in cost contamment as we. contmued to

» conso]xdate three formerly mdependent hog productlon Operauons

T‘hat allowed us to" perform strongly evenina market that dealt with

L such nssues as an excess supply of protem

For example Godwm points to a reducnon in the number of

identical diets that have to be manufactured at each of the company's

| feed mills in North Carolina and Virginia. As a result, mill productivity

has increased and each can focus on producing special grinds that
el]ow hogs to absorb nutrients more effectively. In Mexico, where
Murphy-Brown has 25,000 sows, a state-of-the-art feed mill has halved
feed manufacturing and delivery costs.

Improved scheduling between the hog production and processing
operations and the adoption of whole house marketing have also led to
cost-saving breakthroughs.

“With whole house marketing, we empty hogs from our finishing
houses in a maximum of two truckloads rather than grading them on
three separate trips,” Godwin explains. “This may not seem like a huge
difference, but the savings in transportation and other areas for more
than 8 million East Coast hogs reduced costs by $12 million.”

Murphy-Brown expects to identify additional areas for cost savings
in the coming year, and it continues to focus on improving both hog

productivity and the quality and flavor of pork.
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Financial Summary

SMITHFIELD FOODS, IHC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

PCALTEARS (DOLLAGS MWD SRARES th THOUSANDS BT PR SRt o) .. nm 0 000
QOperations:
Sales 87,356,119 $5,899,927 45,150,469
Gross profit 1,092,928 948,903 694,066
Selling, general and odministrative expenses 543,952 " 450,965 390,634
Interest expense 94,326 88,974 71,944
Income from continuing operations before chonge in accounting
principle for income foxes? 196,386 223513 PRIV
Net income’ 196,886 223513 7512
Per Diluted Share:
Income from continuing operations before change in accaunting
principle for income toxes’ § 178 $ 103 § 16
. Netincome! 178 203 Jb
' Book volue 1241 10.05 8.2)
Weighted average shares outstanding 110419 - - - 110,146 - 98,772 -
.. Finencial Position: \ oo e
Viorking capital $ 798,426 $ 635413 - § 609,857
Total assets - 3,877,998 3,250,888 3,129,613
Long-term debt and copital lease obligations 1,387,147 1,146,223 1,187,770
Shareholders’ equity 1362774 1,053,132 902,909
Financial Ratios:
Current ratio 20 20 1.98
Long-term debt to tota) copitalization 50.4% 521% 56.8%
Return on averoge shareholders’ equity 24 16.2% 18.4% 10.4%
EBITDA 34 § 558,165 $ 509,735 § 310,895
Other Information:
Capital sxpenditures s Imme S § 100,383
Depreciation expense 139,942 124,836 109,893
Common shareholders of record 1,390 1,345 1514
!Jumber of employees 41,000 34,000 36,500

1 FISCAL 2002 MET INCOME AND NET INCOME PER DILUTED SHARE INCLUDE UNUSUAL ITEMS WHICH NET TQ AM INCREASE OF $1.2 MILLION, OR §.01 PER DILUTED SHARE. FISCAL 2001 NET INCOME AND HET INCOME
PER OILUTED SHARE IRQLUDE UNUSUAL GAINS OF $48.6 WMILLION, OR $44 PER DILUTED SMARE. THE RSCAL 2001 GAINS RELATE TO THE SALE OF IBR INC COMMON STOCK, NET OF RELATED EXPENSES, AND THE SALE
OF & PLANT. FISCAL $993 NET INCOME AMD NET INCOME PER DILUTED SHARE INCREASED §11 MILLION AND $.02, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES.

2 (DMPUTED USING INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINGPLE.

3 EBITDA IS COMPUTED USING INCOME FROM (ONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE CRARGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINGPLE, INTEREST EXPENSE, INCOME JAKES, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATICN.
¢ THE FISCAL 2092 COMPUTATION EXCLUDES A GAIM ON THE SALE OF IBF INC. COMMON STOLX AND A LOSS AS A RESULT OF A FIRE AT A HOG FARM. THE FISCAL 2003 COMPUTATICH EXCLUDES GAINS FROM THE SALE

QF (87 INC. COMMON STOCK, LESS RELATED EXPENSES, AND THE SALE OF A PLANT.
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1999 1998 1957 1996 1995 19%4 |9'££ -
$3,774,989 §3,867,242 83,870,611 $2,383,893 1,526,518 $1,403,485 fqn3n2
539,575 - 387,813 323,795 181,781 146,275 117,616 77,241
295,610 219,861 191,225 103,095 61723 50,738 290
40,521 31,89 26,211 20,942 14,054 11,605 6,183
94,884 53400 44937 19,786 31915 19,319 32
94,884 53,400 44937 15,886 27,840 19,702 3989
§ 1 5 67 $ 58 § Vi § Ab ] 28 S 05
116 &7 58 2 A0 28 05
647 4.83 413 358 29 236 2.08
81924 79,464 77,116 - 70,000 61,846 67,394 - 46,790
§ 215865 $ 259,188 § 164,312 § 8802 § 609m § 815m § s46m
1IN,614 1,083,645 995,254 857,619 550,225 452,21% 399,567
594,241 - 407,272 238,485 188,618 155,047 118,942 124517
oS4m0 361,010 307,485 242516 184015 154,950 135770
146 2.03 1.5 1.26 135 1.56 157
52.3% 53.0% 48.4% 41.8% 44.4% 41.9% 46.1%
21.0% 16.0% 15.9% 8.7% 18.4% 12.8% 2.3%
§ 252515 $ 158,725 § 132,945 § 79492 S 86619 § 66550 § M9
§ 95447 S 9293 § 69147 § 74,888 § 90,550 § 5,4 S 87992
63,524 42,300 35,825 25979 19717 037 18418
1,230 1,143 1,189 1,342 150 1,796 1,867
33,000 19,760 17,500 16,300 9,000 8,000 7,000
(27)




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

Rasults of Operations

This discussion of management’s views on the fincndial condition ang results of operaticns of the Company
should be read in conjuncticn with the consolidated finonciol statements and the notes to the consalidoted
financial statements.

Senithfield Foods, Inc. (the Company} is comprised of o Meot Pracessing Group (MPG) ond o Hog
Production Group {HPG). The MPG consists primarily of eight wholly owned domestic meat processing
subsidiories ond four international meat processing entities. The HPG consists primarily of three hog
production operations located in the U.S. and certain joint venture investments outside the US.

Acquisitions

The foltowing acquisitions affect the comparability of the results of aperations for fiscal year 2002, 2000
and 2000:

In October of fiscal 2002, the Compony acquired Packerland Holdings, Inc. (Packerlond) and its affiliated

companies for 6.3 million shares of the Compony’s common stock plus ossumed debt ond other libilities.

In June of fiscal 2002, the Company acquired Mayer Packing Company {Moyer) for $90.5 million in cash

and assumed debt. Packerland and Moyer represent the Company’s newly formed beef processing operations.
Prior to the aequisitions, Packerland and Moyer hod combined annual sales of approximately $2 billion.

In September of fiscol 2002, the Company acquired the remaining common shares of Schneider
Corporation (Schneider], for 2.8 millian shares of the Company’s common stock. Prior fo this transaction,
the Company owned approximately 63% of the autstanding shares of Schneider.

In July of fiscal 2002, the Company acquired substantially afl of the assets and business of Gorges/Quik-
to-Fix Foods, Inc. (Quik-to-Fix) for $31.0 million in cash. Prier to the aequisition, Quik-to-Fix had annua! soles
of approximately $140 million.

In the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2001, Schngider increased its investment in Saskatchewan-bosed
Mitchell's Gourmet Foods Inc. (Mitchell’s) to 54%, reguiring the Company to consolidate Mirchell's accounts and

e G sy gy S s S e s i gy p vt |
Sales
1N HILLIONS
$7,356
$5.908
§5,158
$3,867 R

1998 199¢ 2000 2001 2092
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to discontinue using the equity method of occounting for Mitchells, For the fiscal year ended October 2000,
Mitchell’s had onnual sofes of approximately $190 milfion.

In Jonuary of fiscal 2000, the Company acquired Murphy Forms, fnc. (Murphy) and its affiliated componies
for 2.6 million shares of the Company’s common stock and the assumption of $203.¢ million in debt, plus
other liabilities.

In August of fiscal 2000, the Company acquired the capital stock of Société Financidre de Gestion et de
Posticipation S.A. (SFGP), o private-lobel processed meats manufacturer in France. Prior 1o the acquisition,
SFGP had onnual soles of opproximately 5100 million,

Each of these acquisitions wos gccounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The occompanying
consolidated financial statemants include the financiol position and resulls of operations from the dates
of arquisition.

Consolidated

Fiseol 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001

Sales incracsed $1.5 billion, or 24.7%, reflecting $1.3 billion of incrementol sales of ncquired businesses
in fiscol 2002 and 2001 end a 4.3% increase in unit selfing prices in the MPG. See the following sections
for comments on sales changes by business segment. '

Gross profit increased $144.0 million, or 15.2%, primarily the result of higher pork margins in the MPG,
the inclusion af 5675 million of gross profit of acquired businesses and lower raising costs in the HPG,
Higher MPG margins were the result of product mix in processed meats, a fovorable operating environment
for fresh pork and o strong emphasis on branded ond volue-added fresh pork cotegories. Gross margin
percentage decreosed to 14.9% from 16.1% primarily due to the acquisitions of beef operotions, The beef
operations ore primarily non-brended, fresh meat businesses with accomponying lower margins. Extluding
the beef operotions, current yeor gross margin percentage increased o 16.9% on improved product mix
and margins in processed meals.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $93.0 million, or 20.6%. This intrease wos
primarily due to the inclusion of §54.4 million in expenses of acquired businesses, intreased advertising and
promotion of branded fresh and processed meats, and o $5.0 million loss incurred as a result of o fire at
a Circle Four form in Utah. These increases were partially offset by the efimination of goodwill amortization
from the cdoption of the Stctement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other

Earnings Before Interes!, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortizatian (EBITDA)
I ML0HS

THE SCAL 2007 (OMPUTATION EXCILDES A GASN ON THE SALE OF 187 INC COMMON STOCK AND A L0SS AS A RESULT OF

AHRE AT & HOG FARM. THE FISCAL 2001 (OMPUTATIGN EXCLUDES GAINS FROM THE SALE OF 18P, INC. 4558*
.
COMMON STOCK LESS RELATED EXFENSES, AND THE SALE OF A PLANT, i '

an
§253
e
1958 1999 2000 20 20
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Intangible Assets” {SFAS 142) in fiscal 2002. Had SFAS 142 been effective in fiscal 2001, selling, general
and administrative expenses would have been reduced by $8.8 million.

Depreciation expense increased $15.1 million, or 12.1%, due to the inclusian of depreciation expense of
acquired businesses. ‘

Interest expense increased $5.4 million, or 6.0%, due to the inclusion of the debt of acquired businesses
cnd odditional borrowings associated with the acqusitions and the Company’s share repurchase program,
partially offset by a detrease in the average interest rates on the revolving credit facility and other variable
rate debt,

The effective income tax rete increased to 38.0% in fiscat 2002 a5 compared to 374% in fiscal 2001,

The incrense wos due fo the increase in the valuation allowance for losses of foreign operations. The Company
hod o valuation allowance of $28.8 million ond $20.2 million related o income tox assets os of April 28, 2002
and Apri} 29, 200, respectively, primarily the result of losses in foreign jurisdictions for which no tex benefit
waos recognized.

Net income and net income per diluted share for fiscal 2002 and 2001, adjusted for nonrecurring items,
ore presented below,

2002 200

{1 muLLiows, EXCEPT PER Stae OaTa)} NETINCOME  PER DILUTED SHARE _NETIMCOME _PER DILUTED SHARE
Net income, as reported: $196.9 S1.78 $2235 $203
Nonrecurring items {net of tax): _ ,

Gain on sola of I8P inc. common stock 42 04 45.2 Al
Fire loss at o hog farm (3.0} (.03) —_ —
Sale of Canadian plont — — 34 03
Goodwill amortization — — (8.8) (.08}
Total nanrecurring items 1.2 01 398 36
Net income, excluding nonrecurring items §195.7 §177 $1837 $1.67

Eornings per diluted shore, os shown in the preceding table, was also affected by the issuante of shares in
connection with the acquisition of Packerland ond the purchase of Schneider’s remaining shares in fiscal 2002
and the retirement of shares under the Company’ share repurchose program in fiscal 2002 and 2001

Net Income Per Diluted Shure
“THE FISCAL 7002 COMPUTAION EXCLUDES A GaIN O THE SALE OF 137, INC. COMMGN STOCK AHD A LOSS A5 A RESULT OF
AFIAEAT AHDG AR, THE FSCAL 2001 CONPUTATION EXCLUDES GAINS FRGI THE SALECF 189

COMMON STOCT LESS RELATED EXPENSES, AND THE SALE OF A PLANT. S]‘nt
S1.59
§1.16
5 376
1998 1999 200 0 e
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Fistal 2001 (al;ipa/ed to Fiseal 2000

Soles increased by $749.5 million, or 14.6%, on @ 12.0% incrense in unit selling prices in the MPG and
the incremental sales of acquired businesses in fiscal 2001 and 2000. See the following sections for comments
an sales changes by business segment.

Gross profit increased $254.8 million, or 36.7%, primarily the result of the inclusion of Murphy, sharply
improved margins in the HPG due to higher live hog prices and higher margins in the MPG. Higher MPG
margins were the result of more favorable product mix and increased focus on morgin improvement,

Selling, general and administrative expenses intreased $60.3 million, or 15.4%, primarily on the inclusion
of selling, general ond administrative expenses of acquired businesses, intreased promotion of protessed
meats and expenses relafed fo the oftempted merger with IBP int. (IBP). Also in fiscal 2001, the Company
recognized 0 $5. millicn gain on the sole of a plant in Canada that is reported in selling, general ond
edministrotive expenses.,

Depreciation expense increased $14.9 million, or 13.6%, primarily related to the inctusion of the
depreciotion expense of acquired businesses and increased depreciation expense in the existing business
refledting capital expenditures to increase processed meats, case-ready ond other value-odded fresh
pork capatities.

Interest expense increased $170 mitlion, ar 23.7%, primarily due ta the inclusion of inferest expense on
ossumed debt of acquired businesses, additional borrowings assaciated with the Company's investment in the
common stock of [BP and the shore repurchase program, partially offset by lower average borrawing costs.

In fistal 2001, the Company sold 8.2 million shares of 1BP common stock resulhng in 6 presox goin of
§79.0 million.

The effective income fox rate wos 374% for fiscal 2001 and 2000. The Company had a valuation
ollowonce of $20.2 million and $5.3 million related to income fax ossefs os of Apri} 29, 2001 ond
Apri} 30, 2000, respectively, primarily the result of losses in foreign jurisdictions for which no tox benefit
was recognized.

Reflecting the Factors previously discussed, nel income increased to $223.5 million, or $2.03 per d:lvred
share, in fiscal 2001 up from $75.) million, or $.76 per diluted share, in fiscal 2000. Excluding the gain on
the sole of IBP common stock and the plant in Canada, net of related expenses and income toxes, net income
intreased to 1749 millicn, or $1.59 per diluted shore. Earnings per diluted share wos also offected by the
issuance of shares in connection with the acquisition of Murphy in fiscal 2000 and the retirement of shares
under the Compony’s share repurchase progrom in fiscal 2001 and 2000.

Total Assets
IR MILLORS
$3878
§3,130 8.5
1M
$1,084
1998 1999 2000 200% 2002
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Meat Processing Group

MPG Segment Results

(wanwows) w0 wows W0 swow
Sales §7.0469  95,584.6 262% $4,984.0 12.1%
Operatingprofits . 1980 152 4% 128 100%

Fiscal 2002 Compared fo Fiscal 2007 .
MPG soles increased $1.5 billion, or 26.2%, due fo an-18.6% intrease in fresh ond protessed meats sales
volume ond o 4.3% increase in average unit selling prices of pork products. The sales volume increases were
primorily related to the inclusion of sales of atquired businesses, including 880.2 million pounds, or 94.5%
of the total volume intrease, from the Company’s beef operations, partially offset by sale of o Conadion fresh
pork plont in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, Excluding acquired businesses, fresh pork volumes increased
2.1% while processed meuts volumes remained relatively flat. The increase in average unit selling prices
is attributable to the more favorable product mix in protessed meats, o strong emphosis on branded and
value-added fresh pork categories and price increases to offset higher raw materiol prices.
Operating profitin the MPG increased $62.8 million due to higher margins in both fresh ond processed
meats, partiolly offset by increased advertising and promotional costs and a $5.1 million gain on the sale
of a plant in Canada in fiscal 2001, The Company’s beef aperations contributed $10.0 million to operating
profit. Fresh meat margins increased os the Company continued its emphasis on the branded, velue-added
fresh park categories. Increased processed meat margins reflected higher pricing and impraved product mix.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000 :

MPG sales increased $600.6 million, or 12.0%, on o significant increase in unit selling prices and the
inclusion of the sales of acquired businesses. The unit selling price increase wos primarily attributable
to higher live hog costs and  greater proportion of bronded and value-odded fresh pork in the sales mix.
In fiscal 2001, fresh pork volume increased 2.2%, primarily on branded fresh pork and case-ready while
protessed meats volume remoined relatively flat. Sales volume of other products {primarily by-products)
decreased 5.5%. Excluding arquired businesses, soles volume decreased 2.1%, the result of 0 39% decrease
in processed meats volume partially offset by a 0.8% increase in fresh pork volume. Sales volume decreases

’

Long-Term Debt and Copital Lease Obligations to Total Capitalization
ottuoNs ) VG160 DESTASD AP LISEOBLEATIONS L ToraL comaumanon

§2,750
$2091 52199
50.4%
§1,13¢ 56.8% 521%
4768
[—-—M " 523%
1998 ' BREE 2000 2007 2002
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Liquidity and
Copital Resources

in processed meats in the bose business reflected the eliminatian of certain lawer margin business due in
port to plant closures in Polond and the U.S, These decreases were partially offset by the inclusion of the
sules volume of Mitchell’s and SFGP

Operating profit in the MPG increased $12.3 million, the result of shamply higher margins on processed -
meats offset by lower margins on fresh pork. Morgins in protessed meots reflected better pricing, lower
production costs and improved product mix. Fresh pork margins were down, largely the result of higher live
hog costs which were partially offset fy an improved product mix resulting from the growth in the bronded,
value-odded and cose-ready categories. MPG operating profit olso increased due to a §51 million gain
an the sale of o plant in Canada ond the incremental operating profit from acquired businesses.

Hog Production Group |

HPG Segment Results

{im wieLions) 2002 2001 % CHANGE 2000 % (HANGE
Soles §,2653  $1,2258 32% $735.3 66.7%
Operating profits : 266.6 2813 (5.2)% 996 182.4%

Fiscol 2002 Compored to Fiscal 2001
HPG scles increased $39.5 million, or 3.2%, due to @ small increcse in head sofd, offset by o slight
decrease in live hog pri;:es. HPG had sales of $1.0 billion, ot current prices, to the MPG which are eliminated
in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. v
Operating profit in the HPG decreased $14.7 million due to o 1.7% detrease in live hog prices and a
5.0 million lass incurred as a result of o fire ot a Circle Four farm in Uteh, partially offset by the impact of
fovorable commodity hedging contracts ond lower raising tosts. -

Fiscol 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000
HPG sales increased by $490.5 million due to the inclusion of o full year of the soles of Murphy compared

to only four months in fiscal 2000. HPG sales also benefited from 0 10.5% increase in live hog prices in the
base business. With the acquisition of Murphy in fiscal 2008, hogs sald in fiscal 2001 increased to 11.8 million
from 77 million in the comparable period in fiscaf 2000. The HPG had sales of $0.9 bilfion, ot current prices,
to the MPG which are eliminoted in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of income.

 Operating profit in the HPG increased $181.7 miltion primarily as o result of sharply higher live hog
prices, relotively stoble grain tosts and increosed volume from the Murphy acquisition. In addition, the HPG
realized cost savings on production efficiencies between the hog production units and the MPG phants.

The meat protessing industry is characterized by high sales volume and ropid turnover of inventories ond
accounts receivable. Because of the rapid turnover rate, the Company tonsiders the MPG meat inventories and
atcounts receivable highly liquid and readily convertible into cash. The Company's hag produttion operations
also hove rapid turnover of accounts receivable. Inventory turnaver in the HPG is slower; however, mature
hogs are readily convertible info cash. Borrowings under the Compony’s credit facitities are used to finance
increases in the levels of inventories and accounts receivable resulting from seosonal and other market-reloted
fluctuations in raw material costs. Management believes that through internally generated funds and arcess

to global tredit markets, funds are available to odequately meet the Company’s current and future operating
and capital needs.
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Derivative Financial
Instruments

Cosh provided by operations increased to $298.6 million in fiscal 2002 from 52183 million in fiscol 2001,
This increase was primerily ottributed to higher eornings, excluding gains on the sale of IBP comman stock of
$70 million and $79.0 million in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. Changes in operating ossets ond fabilities
used $439 million of cosh in fiscal 2002 compared to $56.4 million in fiscal 2001, primarily due fo less cosh
deposited for commodity hedging commitments, offset by higher accounts receivable balances resulting from
a growth in revenue,

{osh used in investing acfivities was 52773 million in fiscal 2002 compared to §59.8 million in
fiscal 2001, The increase was primarily due to the cost of business atquisitions in fisco! 2002 and the net
proceeds from the sale of IBP stock in the prior yeer. During fiscal 2002, the Company invested $167.0 million

- in business aequisitions, primarily related to the acquisitions of Moyer ond Quik-to-Fix. Copital expenditures

totaled $171.0 million primarily reloted fo fresh pork and processed meats expansion and plant improvement
projects and additional hog production facilities. In addition, the Company had proceeds of $38.9 million
during fisca) 2001 from the scle of property, plant and equipment, primarily the result of the sale of

plant in Canada, As of April 28, 2002, the Company hod definitive commitments of $70.8 million for capital
expenditures, primarily for processed meats expansion and production efficiency projects.

The Company’s financing ativities in fiscal 2002 resulted in a net use of $7.7 million of cash. Fiscal 2002
finanting octivities included the issuonce of $300.0 million of eight-year 8.0% senier unsecured notes in
October 2001. Net proceeds of the issuance were used to repay indebtedness under the Company’s revolving
credit facility. This repayment was offset by borrawings on the revolving credit fudility to fund net investment
odtivity and 1o repyrchase 4.6 million shares of the Company's commen stock. In the first quarter of
fistal 2002, o new credit facility was placed of Animex Sp. 2.0.0. {Animex), the Company’s Polish subsidiary,
This facility provides for up to $100.0 milfion of financing ond reploced numerous short-term and long-term
borrawings from locol Polish lenders. The facility, which expires in fiscal 2007, is secured by substantially
all Animex ossets and is guurume’ed by the Company. In October 2001, Schneider issued $41.6 million
{CDN $65.0 million) of 15-yeor 7.5% debentures. The debentures are secured by tertoin nssets of Schneider
and ore guaranteed by the Company. Separately, Schneider also extended its $28.8 million (CDN $45.0
million) committed credit focility to fiscal 2004, In December 2003, the Company entered into o five-year

$750.0 million revolving credit agreemént. The borrowings are prepoyable and bear interest, of the Company's

option, ot varicble rates bosed on margins over the Federal Funds rate or short-term Eurodollar rates,
The margins are o function of the Company’s leverage. In connection with this refinancing, the Company
repaid all of its borrowings under its previous $650.0 million revolving credit facility, which was terminated.
At April 28, 2002, the Company had unused availability of $467.0 million under its primary long-term
credit facility. ’

In February 2002, the Company’s board of directors appraved o new 2.0 million share repurchose
program. As of July 15, 2002, the Company has 1.7 million shores remaining which can be repurchased
under this authorization.

The Company is exposed to market risks primarily from changes in commodity prices, as well as changes in
inferest rates ond foreign exchange rafes, To mitigote these risks, the Company enters into varios hedging
transactions that have been authorized pursuant to the Company’s policies and procedures. The Company
believes the risk of defaull or nonperformanca on contracts with counterparties is not significant.

{34)




Critieal Accounting Policies

Commodity Risk o

The Company’s meat processing and hog production operations use various row materials, primarily
live hogs, live cattle, corn and soybean meal, which are odtively traded on commodity exchanges. These
commodities are subject to price fluctuations due to factors beyond the Company’s control such o5 economic
ond political conditions, supply ond demond of 1hese row matericls and compering products, weather,
governmental regulation and other circumstances. The Company hedges these commadities when and to the
extent monagement determines conditions are apprapriate Yo mitigate these price risks. While this moy limit
the Compeny’s ability to participate in geins from fovorable commodity fluctuations, it olso fends o redute
the risk of loss from adverse changes in raw moterial losses. The Company attempts to closely match the
commodity contract ferms with the hedged item. As of April 28, 2002, the sensitivity of the Company's open
conlraets 1o o hypothefical 10% change in their market prite wos $4.3 million.

Interest Rate and Foreign Currency Risk

The Company enters inlo interest rote swaps fo hedge exposure to changes in inferest rotes on certain
financial instruments and periodically enters into foreign exchange forward controdts to hedge certain of its
foreign currenty exposure. As of April 28, 2002, the sensitivity of the Company’s open interest rate and foreign
currency contradts to @ hypothetical adverse 10% change in interest rates and foreign exchange rates was
$0.6 miltion ond §2.2 million, respectively.

The preparation of the Company’s Cansolidated Finandial Statements requires management te make certain
estimates and assumptions, which affect the amaunts reported in the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements. These estimates may differ from octual results, The foliowing is o summary of accounting policies
that require management’s estimates and assumptions and are considered critical by the Company.

Goodwifl ond Intangible Assets

The Company adopted SFAS 142 in fiscal 2002. Accordingly, the Company no longer amartizes goodwill
and certoin other infangible assets an a periodic basis. Instead, SFAS 142 requires that these assets be tested
at least annually for impairment. This test involves comparing the fair value of each reporting unit to the unit’s
hook value to determine if any impairment exists. The Company cotculates the fair value of each reporting

" unit, using estimotes of future cash flows when quoted market prices are not available. In fiscal 2002, the

Company altocated goodwili ond other intangible assets to applicable reporting units, estimated foir value
and performed the impairment test. As a result of these procedures, management believes there is no
material exposure to a foss from impoirment of goodwill and other intangible ossets. However, actual results
could differ from the Company’s cash flow estimates, whick would affect the assessmen? of impairment and,
therefore, could have a material adverse impact an the financial statements.

Hedge Atcounting

The Company uses derivative finanial instruments to manage exposures to fluctuations in commodity
prices and accounts for the use of such instruments in accordante with SFAS No. 133 “Actounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended (SFAS 133). SFAS 133 requires o quarterly
historical assessment of the effectiveness of the instrument to hedge changes in the fair velue of the hedged
item. In rare circumstances, volatile activity in the commodity markets could couse this assessment fo
temporarily reflect the instrument as on ineffective hedge and hedge aciounting would be distontinued.
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Risk Factors

In oddition, the Company routinely hedges forecasted transactions. In the unusual dircumstance that these
transactions foil to occur, hedge accounting would be discontinued. In both situctions, the discontinuence
of hedge atcounting would require thanges in the fair volue of the derivative instrument to be recognized
in current period eornings. Management believes that the assumptions and methodologies used in the
atcounting for derivative financial instruments are the most apprapriate and reasanable for the Company’s
hedging program.

As g participant in the meat processing and hog production industries, the Company is subject to tisks and
uncertainties which, have had at times, and may in the future have, material adverse effacts on its results
of operations and finantial position.

Marke Risk

The Company is lorgely dependent on the cost and supply of hogs, cattle, feed ingredients and the selling
price of our products and competing protein products, oll of whith are determined by constantly changing
market forces of supply and demond os well os other factors over which the Company hes little or no control.
These other factors include fluctuations in the size of North Americon hog ond tattle herds, enviranmental and
conservation regulations, import and export restrictions, econamic conditions, weather and livestack diseases.
The Compeny manages these risks through the use of financial instruments, which are described above.

Food Safety and Consumer Health Risk

The Company is subject to risks affecting the food industry generally, including risks posed by food
spoilage and contamination, consumer product liability claims, produc tampering and the potential cost and
disruption of o produdt recall. '

The Company’s manufacturing facilities and products are subject to constant federal inspection and
extensive regulation in the food safety area {see also Note 12}. The Company has systems in place to monitor
food safety risks throughout all stages of the manufacturing process (including the production of raw
materials in the HPG). Hawever, the Company tannot assure that complionce with protedures ond regulations
will necessarily mifigate the risk related to food safety nor that the impact of @ product contomination will
not have a moteria) adverse impact to the financia! stefements.

Environmental Risk P

The Company’s operafions are subject to extensive and increasingly stringent federal, state and local
laws and regulations pertaining to, among other things, the discharge of materials into the environment and
the handling and utilization or disposition of materiols and organic westes or other potential contaminants,
See Note 12 for further discussion of regulatory compliance as it relates to environmental risk. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations and future changes fo them may result in significant costs including
civil and criminal penalties, liability for domages ond negative publicity.

The Company hes incurred, and will continue fo incur, significont capital and operating expenditures
to comply with these {ows and regulations. The Company closely monitors compliance with regulatory
requirements through o variety of environmental management systems. However, the Company cannot assure
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thot additional environmental issues will not requira currently unanticipated investigation, assessment or
expenditures, or that requirements applicable to the Company will not be altered in ways that will require
it to incur significant additional costs.

Livestock Health Risk

The Company is subject to risks relating to its ability to maintain animel health status in the HPG.
Livestock health problems could adversely impact production, supply of raw material ta the MPG ond
consymer confidence.

The Company monitors herd health on a daily basis end has bio-sexurity protedures and employee
training pragrams in pluce throughout the hog praduction network o reduce the risk refated to potential
exposure of hogs to infectious disenses. Although there have been no reported coses of major livestock
disease outbrecks in North America, there hove been adverse effects in the livestock industries of Europe ond
South America from diseose, and the Company cannot assure that fivestack disease will not have o material
adverse offect on its business.

Packer Ban on Livestack Ownership Risk

Recemtly Congress considered Jegislation thot would hove prohibited meot packers from owning livestock
except under limited circumstonces. This legislation did not pass, but the Company cannct assure that
similor legislation affecting its operations will not be odopted ot the federal or state levels in the future.
Such legislation, if adopted, could hove o moteriolly adverse impoct on the Company’s operations ond
its financial statements. The Company hos and will confinue to aggressively challenge any such legistation.

Acquisition Risk

The Campany has made numerous acquisitions in recent years and regularly reviews opportunities for
strategic growth through acquisitions. These cequisitions may involve large transactions and present finandial,
managerial and operational challenges including difficulty in integrating persennel and systems, assumption
of unknown liabilities and potential disputes with the sellers and other service or product suppliers.

Access to Capital Markers Risk

The Company’s operations ond investment activities depend upon access to debt and equity capital
markets. The Compony ond certain of its operating subsidiaries have entered info separate debt agreements
that contain financial covenants tied to working copital, net worth, leverage, inferest caverage, fixed
tharges and capito) expenditures, among other things. The debt ogreements restrict the payment of dividends
to shareholders ond under certain circumstances may limit odditional borrowings and the acquisition or

(disposition of assets.

As currently structured, o breach of o covenant or restriction in any of the agreements could resultin

 defoult thot would in turn defoult other agreements allowing the affected lenders to accelerate the repayment

of principal and accrved interest an their outstanding locns, if they chose, and terminate their commitments
to lend additional funds. The future ability of the Company and its operating subsidiaries to comply with
financial covenants, make scheduled payments of principal and inferest, or refinance existing borrowings
depends on future business performante which is subject to econamic, financial, political, competitive and
other factors. As of April 28, 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries are in compliance with the finantial
tovenants and restrictions in ofl outstanding loan agreements.
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Forward-Looking Information

This report confains “forword-looking” statements within the meaning of the federal securities lows.

The forward-looking statements include statements concerning our outlock for the future, as well es other
statements of beliefs, future plans and strotegies or anticipated events, and similar expressions toncerning
matters that are not historical focts. Forward-fooking statements are subject o risks ond uncertainties
thet could cause actuol results to differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, the statements,
These risks and uncertainties include the availability and prices of live hogs ond cattle, row materials

and supplies, food safety, livestock disease, live hog production costs, product pricing, the competitive

. environment ond related market conditions, hedging risk, operoting efficiencies, chonges in inferest rote

and foreign currency exchange sates, acess to tapital, the tost of complionce with environmentol and
health standards, odverse results from on-gaing litigation, actions of domestic and foreign governments
ond the ability to moke effactive acquisitions and suttessfully infegrate newly ocquired businesses info
existing operations.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

SMITHFIELD FOUDS, (NC. AND SUBSIDWARIES

Net income per diluted common share

FISCAL YEARS {IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA} 2002 2001 2000
Sales §7,356,11% $5,899,927 $5,150,469
Cost of soles 6,263,191 4,951,024 4,456,403
Gross profit 1,092,928 943,903 694,066
Selling, general and administrative expenses 543,952 450,965 350,634
Depreciation expense 139,942 124,836 109,893
Interest expense 94,326 88,974 71,944
Minority interests 3937 5,829 1,608
Gain on sale of {BP inc: common stock (Note 11) {7,008) {79.019) —
Intome before income taxes ) 37,179 357,018 119,987
{ncome taxes 120,893 133,805 44,875
Net income § 196,38 § 223513 § 75112
Net income per basic common share § 1R BRI S 1

§ 178 § 113 $ I

SEE HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

SHITHFIELD FOODS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

AL RS BOD (WDoISS QT SWEOR)_ L mmmw g
Assets
Current assets:
Cosh ond cash squivolents EARTY § 56532
Actounts reteivable less allowances of $9,037 and $6,392 516,672 387 841
Inventories > 860,475 129,167
Prepaid expenses and other current assets : 72,068 90,155
Total current ossets 1,520,356 1,263,695
Praperty, plant and equipment:
Lond 105,722 76,100
Buildings and improvements 869,060 124
Machinery ond equipment 1,075,637 855,838
Breeding stock 95,897 94,286
Construction in progress - 60,728 59,307
2,207,044 1,796,655
Less accumulated depreciation (658,899) (522,178)
Net property, plant and equipment 1,548,145 1,274 477
Other assets: ‘
Goodwill 448,273 347,341
Investments in partnerships ‘ 119,727 88,092
Other 241,497 277,282
Total other assets 809,437 712,716
S s

SEE NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS
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APRIL 28, 2002 APRIL 29, 2001
Liobilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Notes payable $ 239% $ 35504
Current portion of long-erm debs ond tapital lease obligations 68,868 79,590
Accounts payoble 355,852 278,093
Accrued expenses and other current liablities 273,220 235,095
Total current liobilities 721,930 628,282
Long-tesm debt and capital leose obligations 1,387,147 1,146,223
Other noncurrent linbilities:
Deferred income taxes 276,602 271,516
Pension ond postretirement benefits 74,154 77520
Other 37302 25820
Total ather noncurrent liabilities 388,058 374 856
Minority interests 18,089 48,395
Commitments and contingenties
Shoreholders’ equity:
Preferred stack, $1.00 par value, 1,000,000 cuthorized shares —_ —_
Common stack, $.50 par value, 200,000,000 and 100,000,000 authorized shares; A
110,284,112 ond 52,502,351 issued and outstanding. 55,142 26,251
Additiona! paid-in copital 490,125 405,665
Retained earnings 835,665 638,779
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (18,158} (17.563)
Total shareholders’ equity 1,362,774 1,053,132
$3,877,998 $3,250,888
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

SMITHRELD FOODS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FSCAL YEATS (i THOLSaNDs) 2002 _ua . [
Operating activities:
Net income $ 195,886 § 223,513 § 7512
Depreciation and omortization 148,068 140,050 118,964
Defetred income taxes 5861 (7,151) 13227
Gain on sale of BP inc. commen stack {7.008) (79,019) —
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment {1,298) {214 (2,59)
Changes in operating assets and liahilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (24,047) {4,640) (7.192)
Inventories (53,814) (51,169) (35.976)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 43914 29,799 (44,501}
Other gssefs (6,265) (14,276) 2,153
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liobilities {3,618) (16,11) 6,022
Net cosh provided by operoting octivities 298,569 218,282 125,218
Investing activities: . R
Capital expenditures (11.000) {144,120) :+-{100,383)
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (167,035} {29.725) +{34,59)
Proteeds from sale of IBP inc. commen stock 58,654 224451 v —
Investments in [BP inc. common stack —_ (147,352) 251,479
Investments in partnerships and ofher assets (13,338 (2013)  -{1,810)
Proceeds from sole of property, plont and equipment 15,425 38,920 Ml 6018
Net cash used in investing activities (277 ,304) {59,839 {192,250)
Financing activities:
Net repayments on nofes payable {40,407) (39,676) (249,393}
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 408 869 31,009 269,041
Net (repayments) borrowings on long-term credit focility {148,000} 12,000 324,000
Principal payments on long-term debt and copital {ease obligations {146,750) {86,286) (187,632
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (85,716} {77,768) {73,145)
Exercise of common stock options 4323 8,357 412
Net cash {used in) provided by finoncing activities (7,681) (152,364) 86,992
Net intrease in cosh and cash equivolents 13,584 6,079 19,960
Effect of currency exthange rates on cash / 1,025 n (668)
Cash and cosh equivalents at beginning of year 56,532 49,882 30,590
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year L SARL § 56,532 _§ 49882
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: )
Interest paid, net of omount capitalized $ 95335 $ 104,362 § 79780
Income toxespad 123,173 126,?24:__“___”‘_@9,3_1_51
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issved for acquisitions § 202,695 s - $ 369,407
Fommon stock repurchases not settled (7,951) - —

SEE NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity -

SMITHFIELD FOODS, ML, AND SUBSIDIARIES

ACCUMULATED
Y OTHER
COMON STOLK ADDITIONAL RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
fﬁ THOUSANDS}  SHARES PAR VALUE PAIDAN CAPITAL " EARNINGS IRCOME {Loss] mng
Balonte, May 2, 1999 41,847 . §20924 §180,020 °©  $340,154 S 1148 § 542246,
Comprehensive income: .
Net income — — — 75,112 — N2
Unreolized loss on securiies — -— — — (3,882) {3,882)
Foreign currenty translotion — — — —_ {6,561) {6,561)
Minimum pension liability — —_— — _— {4,389) {4,389)
Totaf comprehensive income 60,280
Common stock issved 15,604 7,802 361,605 _ — 369,407
Exercise of stock options 2 - LN 4,005 — — 410
Repurchose and refirement of comman stock {2,978) {1,489) (165 . — —_ (73,145)
Balance, April 30, 2000 54,705 27,353 473,974 415,266 (13,684) 902,909
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — 223,513 — 223513
Unreolized goin on securities —_— — —_ —_ 45,899 45,89%
Redlassification adjustment for goins incuded '
in net income . — — — — (45,200) {45,200)
Foreign currenty tronslation — — — — {3,167) 3107)
Minimum pension liakility — — — _— (r4n) (1417)
Total comprehansive income 219,634
Exercise of stock options 7] 212 8,145 — — 8,357
Repurchase and refirement of common stock (2,627} {1.314) (76,454) — - {77.768)
Balance, April 29, 200 52,503 26,251 405,665 638,779 {17,563) 1,053,132
Two-for-one stock split 52,503 26,25 (26,251) — — —
Comprehensive income: ’
Net income _ — — 194,886 — 196,886
Transition adjustment for hedge accounting — — — — (12,617 (12,617}
Unrealized gain on securities — — — —_ 5,188 5188
Foreign currency fransiation — — — — 234 234
Minimum pension liobility — — — —_ (969) {969)
Redassification adjustments:
Hedge actounting — — — — 11,823 11,823
Seuwrities — — — — (4.254) (4.254)
Total comprehensive incame 196,29
Common stock issued 9,573 4787 197,508 — —_ 202,695
Exercise of stock options 34 N 4152 —_ _ 4323
Repurchase and retirement of common stack {4.636) (2.318) (91,349} — — (93,667)
Balance, April 28, 2002 110,284 §55,142 490,125 835,665 §(18,158) 91,362,774

SEE NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERTS
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHITHFIELD FOODS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES / (DOLLARS W THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Note 1
Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Nature of Business
Smithtield Foods, Inc. ond subsidiaries {the Company) is comprised of o Meat Processing Group {MPG) end

o Hog Prodution Group {HPG). The MPG consists primarily of eight wholly owned domestic meat processing

subsidiaries and four intenational meot processing entities. The HPG consists primarily of three domestic
hog production operations and tertain joint ventures autside of the LS.

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consoliduted financiol statements include the accounts af the Company after elimination
of oll material intercompany balances ond transections. Investments in partmarships are recorded using the
equity method of accounting.

Manogement uses estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the tonsolidoted financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. that affect the amounts reported

. in the financial statements ond.accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from thase estimates.

The Companys fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks, ending on the Sunday nearest April 30. Fiscal 2002,

- 2000 Qnd 2000 were al} 52 weeks.

"Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less 10 be cash
equivolents. The corrying value of cash equivalents approximates markes value. As of Apri) 28, 2002
and April 29, 200%, cash and tash equivalents include $20,651 and $2,670, respectively, in short-ferm
marketable securities,

Inventories
Inventories are valued ot the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market. Cost includes raw materials, labor and
manufacturing and praduction overhead. inventories consist of the following:

e L MRLB A0 ARLTS 2O
Hogs on farms §349.215 $33),060
Fresh and processed meats 409,193 316,929
Manufocturing supplies 74,909 60,823
Other 27,158 20,355

860,47 5. _37_291[67

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plont and equipment is stated ot cost and deprecioted over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
Buildings and improvements are depreciated over periods from 20 to 40 years. Mahinery and equipment

is depreciated over periods from two to 20 years, Breeding stock is depreciated over two and one-half years,
Assets held under capital leases are classified as property, plont and equipment and amiortized over the
lease terms. Lease amortization is included in depreciotion expense. Repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred. Improvements that materially extend the lile of the asse! ore topitelized. Gains and
losses from dispositions or retirements of property, plant and equipment are recognized currently.
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Interest on capital projects is apitalized during the construction period. Total interest capitalized wos
§1,757 in fiscol 2002, $2,788 in fiscal 2001 and $3,293 in fiscal 2000. Repoir and maintenance expanses
totaled $206,133, 5178928 ond $160,222 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financiol Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Finoncial Accounting
Standurds (SFAS) No. 141 “Business Combinations” {SFAS 141} and SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intongible Assets” {SFAS 142). ‘ ‘

SFAS 141 requires any business combinations ta be accounted for by the purchose method. Additionally,
SFAS 141 further clarifies the eriteria for recognizing identifiable intangible assets separate from goodwill.
The Compony hos applied SFAS 141 1o oll business combinations in fisca} year 2002 {Note 2).

SFAS 142 addresses financial accounting and reporting for ocquired goodwill ond other intengible assets.
This statement requires that ocquired goodwill and other indefinite-lile intangible ossets are na longer
periedically emortized into income, but are subjedt to an annuc! impaisment measurement. Separable
intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite life will continue to be amartized over their
useful lives. The Company elected early adoption of SFAS 142. In accardonce with SFAS 142, fiscal 2002 does
not include amortization of acquired goodwill and other indefinite-life intangible assets. The Company has
allocated goodwill to its reporting units and performed an assessment of potentiol copital impairment,
Management does net believe that there is significant exposure to a loss from impairment of acquired
goodwill and ather intangible assets. Had SFAS 142 been effective in fiscal 2001 and 2000, net income and
diluted net income per common share would have been $232,329, or $2.11 per diluted share, and $81,535,
or $.83 per diluted share, respectively. ’

Delerred debt issuance costs are amartized over the terms of the related loan agreements.

Investments in Partnerships ,

The (ompany uses the equity method of accounting for its investments in joint ventures ond other entities
in which it has more than 20%, but not more that 50% voting interest. The table below summarizes the
Company’s various partnership investments as of April 28, 2002 and April 29, 2001.

] 00 00!
Agroindustrial del Noroeste : § 28,021 $22,700
Caraling Turkeys 27,983 23,789
Granjas Corroll de Mexico ) 19,430 13,756
Qther 44,293 27,838

S119,727 488,092

jmony

Derivative Financicl Instruments and Hedging Activilies
On April 30, 2001, the first doy of fiscal 2002, the Company edopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards {SFAS) No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” os amended
(SFAS 133). All derivatives ore reflected at their fair value and are recorded in current assets and current
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 28, 2002. Derivative insiruments consist primarily
of exchange-troded futures contracts.

The atcounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends upon whether it has been
designated in a hedging relationship and on the type of hedging relationship. To qualify for designation
in a hedging relctionship, specific criteric must be met and the oppropriate documentation maintained.
Hedging relationships are established pursuant to the Company’s risk management policies and are initially
and regulorly evaluated to determine whesher they are expected to be, and have been, highly effective
* hedges. If a derivative ceoses to be a highly effective hedge, hedge occounting is discontinued prospectively,
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and future changes in the fair value of the derivative are retogflized in earnings each pariod. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives not designated in o hedging relotionship ore recognized in earnings each period.

For derivatives designated os a hedge of  recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm
commitment {fair value hedges), the changes in the fair volue of the derivotive as well as changes in the
foir value of the hedged item attributable o the hedged risk are recognized each period in earnings.
I a firm commitment designated as the hedged item in a fair value hedge is terminated or otherwise no
fonger quelifies as the hedged ifem, any osset or liahility previously recorded os part of the hedged item
Is recognized trrently in earnings.

 For derivatives designated as o hedge of o forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows

related to o recognized asset or fiability (cash flow hedges), the effective porticn of the change in fair value of
the derivative is reported in other comprehensive income and reclossified into earnings in the period in which
the hedged item affects earnings. Amounts excluded from the effectiveness calcwlation and eny inetlective
portion of the change in fair volue of the derivative are recognized currently in earnings. Gains or fosses
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income assoriated with terminated derivatives and derivatives
that cease to be highly effective hedges remain in occumulated other comprehensive income until the hedged
item affects earnings. Forecasted transactions designated as the hedged item in o cash flow hedge are
regularly evaluated fo ossess whether they cantinue 1o be probable of occurring. If the forecasted transaction
is na longer probable of occurring, any guin o loss deferred in occumulated other comprehensive income
is recognized in earnings currently.

On April 30, 2003, upon odoption of SFAS 133, the Compony recorded o 512,716 after-tax Joss os
a wmulative effect of an atcounting chonge résulting in on increase of other comprehensive loss in
shareholders’ equity (net of incoma tax benefits of $7968) to recognize the fair value of all derivative financiol
instruments. A/l of the transition odjustment recorded in other comprehensive loss ot Aprit 30, 2001, was
redassified into earnings during fiscal 2002. .

With the adoption of SFAS 133, the occounting for certain aspects of derivative instruments ond hedging
activities was different in periods prior to its odoption. Prior to fiscal 2002, when the Company entered
into derivative commaodity instruments {primarily futures contracts) unrealized and realized gains and losses
on those hedge controcts were deferred and recognized in income in the same manner os the hedged item.
No unrealized goins or losses were reported in other comprehensive income. Prior to fiscol 2002, the Company
did not have any significant activity with interest rate or foreign currency derivotives.

Foreign Currency Translation

For the Company's foreign operations, the Jocol currency is the functional currency. Assets and liabilities are
tronslated into U.S. dollars o the period-ending exchange rote. Statement of income amounis are translated
to U.S. doltars using average exchange rates during the period. Translotion gains and losses cre reported

as a component of other comprehensive income in sharehalders’ equity. Gains ond losses from foreign currency
tronsoctions are included in cusrent earnings.

Revenue Recognition .
Revenues from product scles are recorded upon shipment to customers.

Self-lnsurance Programs

The Company is seli-insured for cerain fevels of general ond vehicle liability, property, workers' compensation
and health core coverage. The tost of these self-insurance programs is accrued hosed upon estimated
settlements for known ond incurred but not reported claims. Any resulfing adjustments fo previously recarded
reserves ore reflected in urrent operating resulls. '

.
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Note 2
Acquisitions

Net Income Per Share

The Company presents dual computations of net income per share (Note 13). The basic computation is
bosed on weighted average common shares outstanding during the period. The diluted computation reflects
the potentially dilutive elfect of common stock equivelents, such as stock options, during the period. On
September 14, 2001, o two-for-one stock split of the Compony’s common stock was effected in the form of

¢ stock dividend. Accordingly, ofl historical share and per shore amounts have been restoted to reflect the
stock spiit,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Emerging Issues Task Force {EITF) has issued consensuses EITF 00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales
(ncentives,” EITF 00-22, “Accounting for ‘Points’ and Certain Other Time-Based or Yolume-Bosed Sales
Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free Products or Services to Be Delivered in the Future” and EITF 00-25,
"Yendor Income Statement Characterization of Consideration from a Vendor to o Retailer.’ These standards
relote to income ssatement clossification of advestising, promotional and certain rebote costs. These were
effective beginning in the fourth quarier of fiscal 2002. The adoptian of these stondards hos no matericl
impact to sales or expenses as reported in the (ompany’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been restated to conform to fiscal 2002 presentations.

In October of fiscal 2002, the Company acquired Packerland Holdings, Inc. {Packerland) and its affiicted
companies for 6.3 million shares of the Company’s common stock plus assumed debt and other libilities,
The preliminary balance of the purchase price in excess of the fuir value of the assets acquired and the
fiabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition was recorded as goodswill tataling $103964.

In June of fiscal 2002, the Company acquired Moyer Packing Company {Moyer) for $99,491 in cash plus
assumed debt. The preliminary balarca of the purchase price in excess of the fair value of the ossets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the date of the acquisition was recorded as gaodwill tataling $6,865.

Had the acquisitions of Parkerand and Moyer occurred of the beginning of fiscal 2001, soles, net income
and net income per difuted share would hove been $8,220,010, $202,460 ond $1.78, respectively, for fiscal
2002 ond $7957954, $235,283 and $2.02, respectively, for fiscal 2001,

in September of fistal 2002, the Company ncquired the remaining commaon shares of Schneider
Corporation [Schaeider) for 2.8 million shares of the Company’s common stock. Prior to this transaction, the
Company owned approximately 63% of the outstanding shares of Schneider. The balance of the purchase
prite in excess of the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
wos recorded as goodwill totaling $13,670.

In July of fiscal 2002, she Company acquired substanticlly all of the ossets and business of Garges/Quik-
to-Fix Foods, Inc. (Quik-to-Fix} for $31,038 in cash.

In the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2001, Schneider intreased its investment in Saskatchewan-based
Mitchells Gourmet Foods Inc. (Mitchells) to 54%, requiring the Company fo consofidate Mitchelt’s accounts
and fo discontinue using the equity method of accounting for Mitchell’. The bolonce of the purchase price in
extess of the fair value of assets otquired and lihilities assumed at the dote of acquisition was recorded as
goodwill totaling $21457. :
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u
in January of fiscal 2000, the Company acquired Murphy Farms, Inc. (Murphy} and its affilieted companies |
for 22.6 million shares of the Company’s common stock and the assumption of opproximately $203,000
in debt, plus other ligbilities. Hod the acquisition of Murphy occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2000, soles, -
nef income and net income per diluted share would have been $5,329,074, 577633 and 5.65, respactively.
In Moy of fiscal 2000, the Company ccquired Corroll's Foods, Inc. {Carrolls) and its offiliated companies |
and partnership interests for 8.7 million shares of the Company’s commeon stock and the assumption of B
approsimately $231,000 in debt, plus other liabilities.
In August of fiscal 2000, the Company ccquired the capital stack of Sociéts Financiére de Gestion et de” B
Participation S.A. (SFGP), o private-labe! protessed meats manufacturer in France. )
Each of these acquisitions was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, B
the accomponying consolidated financial statements indude the financial position and results of operations
from the dates of acquisition. Had the acquisitions of Quik-to-Fix, Mitchell', SFGP and the purchose of B
the remaining shares of Schneider otcurred ot the beginning of the fiscal years in which they were acguired,
there would not have been o moterial effect on sales, net income or net income per diluted shore for such .
fiscal years.
The following table provides information on the amounts added to the Consolidated Balante Sheets for B
acquisitions in fiscal 2002. Total assets acquired in fiscal 2001 were approximately $87000, .
. ’ _ WURK!’NG CAPITAL _ TOTAL ASSETS -I.ONG-TERM ng
Packerlond $62,213 §349,446 N1 u
" Moyer ' 27,609 132525 7559 ) [
. Other 24,962 76,057 330
Note 3 " Long-term debt consists of the following: |
Debt
. . i _ i N"N. IB, 2002 APRIL 29, ?00)‘ .
8.00% senior unsecured notes, due October 2009 . § 300,000 § —_
Long-term credit facility, expiring December 2006 259,000 407,000 .
7.625% senior subordinated notes, due February 2008 185,137 185,137 .
8.52% senior nates, due August 2006 190,000 100,000 .
7.89% senior note, poyable thraugh October 2009 75,000 - 85,000 ]
Variable rote note, poyable through October 2009 62,500 67,500
8.25% note, payable through March 2006 60,000 75,000 .
8.44% note, payable through October 2009 50,000 50,000
'750% debentures, due October 2016 41,624 — |
8.34% senior notes, due August 2003 40,000 40,000
Variable rate note, payable through July 2011 29,000 — n
8.63% note, payable through July 261 . 24,167 —
Miscellaneous with interest rates ranging from 3.04% ‘ .
to 13.80%, due July 2002 through October 2017 208,460 191,512
1,434,888 1,201,149 -
Less current portion (64,542) (75,623} .
_ Sl,370,34§ 91,125,526
|
|
[ |
|
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows: -

ol S
2003 . § 64542
2004 ' 132018
2005 66,774
2006 : 64,599
2007 . 438,899
Thereatter ‘ 668,056

§1,434,888

-

In December 2001, the Company entered into o five-year $750,000 revolving credit agreement. The
borrowings are prepayable and beer interest, at the Company’s optio, at veriable rotes based on margins
aver the Federaf Funds rate or short-term Eurodoflor rates. The morgins are o function of the Compony's
leverage. In connection with this refinoncing, the Company repoid ol of its borrowings under its previous
$650,000 revolving credit focility, which was ferminated.

In October 2003, the Company issued $300,000 of eight-year B.0% senior unsecured notes, due 2009,
The net proceeds were used a repay indebledness under the Company's revalving credit facility,

In the first quarter of fiscal 2002, o new credit facility was put in place of Animex Sp. 2.0.0. {Animex),
the Compony’s Polish subsidiory, This forility provides for up to $100,000 of finonting ¥o replate numerous
short-term and long-term borrowings from locol Polish lenders. The facility, which expires in fiscal 2007,
is secured by substantilly oll Animex assets and is guaranteed by the Company.

In October 2001, Schneider issued 541,624 [CDN $65,000) of 15-year 75% debentures. The debentures
are'secured by certain assets of Schneider and are guaranteed by the Company, Separately, Schneider olso
extended its $28,817 (CDN $45,000) committed credit facility to fiscal 2004,

The Company has nggregate credit facilities totaling $812,300. As of April 28, 2002, the Company had
unused capacity under these tredit facilities of $500,600, These facilities are generally ot prevoiling morket
rates. The Company pays a commitment fee on the unused portion of the aggregate revolving credit facilities.

Average barrawings under credit facilities were $343,480 in fiscal 2002, 5415724 in fisca! 2001 ond
$305,470 in fiscal 2000 ot average interest rates of approximately 4.5%, 7.3% and 7.5%, respectively.
Maximum borrawings were $554,424 in fiscal 2002, $524,997 in fiscol 2007 and $458922 in fiscal 2000.
Tota! outstanding borrowings were $281,429 ond $442,504 with average interest rates of 39% ond 5.9%
as of April 28, 2002 and April 29, 2001, respectively.

The senior subordinated notes are unsecured, Senior notes are secured by certain of the Company’s major
processing plants and hog farm facilities. The $750,000 credit bacility is secured by substantiolly al) of the
Campany’s U.S. inventories and accounts reteivable.

The Company’s various debt agreements contein financiol covenants that require the maintenance of
tertain levels and ratios for working copitel, net worth, turrent ratio, fixed charges, topital expenditures
and, among other restrictions, limit additional barrowings, the ocquisition, disposition ond leasing of assets,
and payments of dividends to shareholders. As of April 28, 2002, the Company is in compliance with all
debt covenants.

The Company datermines the fair value of public debt using quoted market prices and values all other
debt using discounted cash flow fechniques at estimated market prices for similar issues. As of April 28, 2002,
the fair value of long-term debt, based on the market value of debt with similar maturities and covenants,
was approximotely $1,467495.
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Note 4 Income tox expense consists of the following:
{ncome Taxes
U {1/ SR - . MNP ..
Current fox expense:
Federal $ 95,782 $121,070 $26,994
State 11,064 15,416 374
Foreign 8,186 4,470 1,480
115,032 140,956 31,648
Deferred tax expense {benefit):
Federal 2332 (7,362) 9,500 -
State 1,098 (1,479} 1073
Foreign 2431 1,690 2,654
5,861 {7151} 13,227
§120,893 §133,805 $44 875
= = T <

A raconciliation of taxes computed ot the federa! statutory rate to the provision for income taxes

is as follows:
_— Y S | L
Federal income taxes ot statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 350%
* “State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 23 24 17
~ Taxes on foreign income which differ from the
statutory U.S. federal rate 23 07 29
 Foreign scles corporation benefit {29 {07 (20
Other 13 — (02
38.0% 374% 37.4%

The tox efects of temporary differences consist of the following:

APRIL 24, 2602 APRIL 28, 2&‘91
Deferrad tox assets:

Accrued expenses $ 16,506 $ 11,909
' Tox credits, carryforwards and net operating losses 11,893 19,059
“Intangibles 4515 _ 2462
Other 1,893 6,321
§ 34,807 § 39751

Deferred tox liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment §13871 $123,560
Accounting method chonge 114,573 128,900
Investments in subsidiaries 39514 40,089
Other 3,061 —
ﬁ o 295919 $290.549
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Note 5
Accrved Expenses and
Other Cutrent Liabilities

Note 6
Shareholders’ Equity

As of April 28, 2002 and April 29, 200), the Company had $15490 and $18,718, raspectively, of net current
deferred tax assets included in prepaid expenses and other current assets. The Company hed a valuation
allowance of $28,824 and 520,214 related to income tax assets as of April 26, 2002 and Aprit 29, 2001,
respectively, primarily the result of losses in foreign jurisdictions for which no tax benefit wos recognized.

The tax credils, carryforwards and net operating losses expire from fiscal 2003 to 2022.

As of April 28, 2002, foreign subsidiary net earnings of $49,59% were considered permanently reinvested
in those businesses. Accordingly, federal income taxes have not been provided for such earnings, It is not
procticable to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred tox liabilities ossociated with such earnings.

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

APRIL 28, 2002 APRIL 25, 200}

Payroll and related benefits - S 96,735 $ 80,960
Self-insurance reserves 35,000 31,870
QOther 141 485 122,265
‘ $273,.220 5235,022

Authorized Common Shores
On August 29, 2001, the Company's shareholders approved an amendment to the articles of incorporation
providing for an increase in the number of outhorized comman shares from 100,060,000 to 200,000,000.

Stock Split

As distussed in Note 1, the Company effected o two-for-one stock split of its common stock on September 14,
2001. Share amounts presentad in the Consolidated Balonce Sheets and the Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders’ Equity reflect the actual share amounts outstanding for each period presented. Stock option
agreements provide for the issuance of additional shares for the stock split. All stack options outstanding
and per share amounts for all periods have been restated to reflect the etfect of this split.

Share Repurchase Program

As of April 28, 2002, the haard of directors has autharized the repurchase of shares of the Company’s comman
stock. The Company repurchased 4,636,300, 5,253,670 and 5,956,800 shares in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. As of Aprif 28, 2002, the Company has autherization to repurchass 2,153,030 additional shares,

Preferred Stock

The Compony has 3,000,000 shores of $1.00 par volue preferred stock outhorized, none of which are issued.
The board of directors is authorized to issue preferred stock in series and to fix, by resolution, the designation,
dividend rate, redemption provisions, liquidation rights, sinking fund provisions, conversion rights and voting
rights of eath series of preferred stock.
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Stock Options

The Company’s 1992 Stock Option Plan and its 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (collectively, the incentive plans)

provide for the issuance of nonstatutory stock opfions o manogement and other key employees, Options were
A granted for periods not exceeding 10 years ond exercisable five years after the date of gront of an exercise

price of not less than 100% of the foir market volue of the common stock on the date of grant. There are

11,000,000 shares reserved under the incentive plans. As of April 28, 2002, there were 3,533,000 shares

availohfe for gront under the incentive plans.

The following is @ summary of stock option tronsortions for fiscal years 2000 through 2002:

KUMBER OF WEIGHTED AVERAGE

— e e e e SR ORGSEFRIE
Qustanding at May 2, 1999 4,285,000 §798
Granted 110,000 .99
Exercised ' {464,000) 577
Cancelled {230,000} 8.43
Quistanding ot April 30, 2006 3,701,000 834
Granted - 1,480,000 13.22
Exertised (849,000) 589
Cancefled {130,000) 1142
Outstonding at April 29, 2001 4,202,000 10.46
" . Granled . - 1845000 - 18.99
Exercised (341,000 6.66

. Cancelled {20,000} 1322
Outstanding of April 26, 2002 SeO0 s

_ The following 1able summarizes information about stock options cutstanding as of Aprii 28, 2002:

WELGHTED AVERAGE

REMAINING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

CONTRACTUAL WEIGHTED AYERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE

EME“Z("’TEXTER(?f‘P’R.IEf._ bl gyl S SWES'...A: _:.:'Z.Z:‘_J'}:.E_'(.Y'Tfksl'::'.':.—.. _:E'xg:f}s_gik.":i T IS :S'_H.A_RT!_S':_,._ St E_l“m_“‘.nl:&
§ 57610 7.65 1,261,000 20 $ 601 1,261,000 $6.01
82310 939 210,000 55 857 140,000 8B
131210 14.59 2,310,000 73 1345 — —
15.81 10 16.34 60,000 58 1603 — —
182010 21.84 1,845,000 5. 1899 — —
§ 576102184 5686000 6. §13.45 1,401,00 $6.23

Ik

]
it

The Company does not recognize compensation costs for ifs stock aption plans. Had the Company
determined compensation tasts based on the fair valve at the grant date for its stock options gronted
subsequent to fiscal 1995, the Compony’s net income and net income per share would have decrensed.
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The fair value of each stock option share granted is estimated of date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing mode! and weighted average assumptions:

) 2002 2001 2000
Net intome, as reported © 196,886 §223513 - §75,112
Pro formo net income 193,888 221,686 73,960
Net income per share, os reported:

Busic § 182 S 206 S 7

Dilted ~ 178 203 76
Pra formo net income per share: o

Basic § 179 § 205 § 76

Dilted W/ 20) 75
Weighted average fair volues of option shares

granted : $ 900 S 664 § 584
Expected option iife 7.0 years 7.0 years 7.0 years
Risk-free interest rate 51% 6.3% ©59%
Expected annual volafility 35.0% 35.0% 350%
Pividend yield D.0% 0.0% .0.0%

Prelerred Share Purchase Rights

On May 30, 2001, the boord of directors of the Company udopted a new Sharehalder Rights Plan (the Rights
Plan} and declared o dividend of ane preferred share purchase right (a Right} on each outstanding shore

of common stock. Under the terms of the Rights Plan; if o person or group atquires 15% {or other applicoble
percentage, as provided in the Rights Plan} ar more of the outstanding common stock, each Right will

entitle its holder (other than such person or members of suth group) to purchase, ot the Right's then current
exercise prite, a aumber of shares of cammon stock hoving @ market value of twice such price. In addition,

if the Company is acquired in o merger or other business transaction after a persan or group has ecquired
such percentage of the outstanding comman stack, each Right will entitle its holder (other than such person
or members of such group) to purchase, of the Right’s then current price, o number of the ucqumng company’s
common shares hoving o market value of twice such price.

Upon the occurrence of certain events, each Right will entitle its halder to buy one two-thousandth of a
Series A junior participating preferred share Preferred Share), par value $1.00 per share, ot an exercise price
of §90.00 subject to odjustment. Each Preferred Shore will entitle its holder 10 2,000 votes and will have
an-aggregate dividend rate of 2,000 times the amount, if any, paid to halders of common stack. The Rights
will expire on Moy 31, 2011, unless the date is extended or unless the Rights are earlier redeemed or
exchanged at the aption of the board of directors for $.00005 per Right. Generally, each share of common
stock issued after May 31, 2001 will have one Right atteched. The adoption of the Rights Plan hes no
impact an the financial pasition or results of operations of the Company.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Components of accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of the following:

APRIL 28, 2007 APRIL 29, IT‘
Minimum pension lickifity § {9,953 $ (8,984}
Foreign currency tronslation (6,534) (6,768)
Unrealized loss on securities {877) (1,841}
Losses on hedge atcounting (794) —
i«umulured other comprehensive loss - ©§(18,158) $(17,563)
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Note 7
Derivative Financial
Instruments

The Company’s meat processing and hog production operations use various rew materials, primarily live hogs,
live cattle, corn and soybean meal, which ore octively traded on commodity exchanges. The Company hedges
these commodities when manogement determires conditians are appropriate fo mitigate these price risks.
While this may limit the Company'’s obility to porticipate in goins from fovorable commodity fluctuations, it
also tends to reduce the risk of loss from adverse changes in raw material fasses. The Company attempts to
closely match the commodity contract terms with the hedged item. The Company also enfers into interest rate
swaps fo hedge exposure fo changes in interest rates on certain financial instruments and periodically enters
into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge tertain of its foreign currency exposure.

Cash Flow Hedges
The Company utilizes derivatives (primarily futures contracts) to manage its exposure to the variability in
expected future cosh flows attributable to commodity price risk associated with forecasted purchases and sales
of live hogs, live cattle, corn and soybean meal. These derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges.
Derivative gains or lasses from these cash flow hedges are deferred in other comprehensive income and
reclossified into earnings in the same pariod or periods during which the hedged forecasted purchases or sales
offect earnings. To match the underlying transaction being hedged, derivative gains or losses associated with
anticipoted purchases are recognized in cost of sales and omounts essaciated with onticipoted soles are
recognized in scles in the Consofidated Statements of Income. Ineffectiveness related to the Company’s tash
flaw hedges were not matericl in fiscal 2002. There were no derivative gains or losses excluded from the
assassment of hedge effectivenass and no hedges were discontinued during 2002 as a result of it becoming

* probable that the forecosted transaction will not ocur.

Fair Volue Hedges

The Company’s commodity prite risk management strategy also intludes derivative transactions (primarily
futures contracts) that are designated as fair value hedges. These derivatives are designated as hedges of firm
commitments 10 buy or sell live hogs, live cattle, corn and soybeon meal. Derivative gains and losses from
these fair-value hedges are recognized in earnings cwrrently along with the change in fair volue of the hedged
item attributable to the risk being hedged. Gains and losses related to hedges of firm commitments are

" recagnized in cost of sales in the Consolidated Statement of Income. Ineffectiveness related to the Company's

foir value hedges were not material in fiscal 2002. There were no derivative gains or losses excluded from
the assessmen of hedge effectiveness during fisca! 2002,

Foreign Currency and Inferest Role Derivatives
In atcordance with the Company’s risk manogement policy, tertain foreign turrency ond interest rate
derivatives were executed in fiscal 2002, These derivative instruments were recorded os cash flow hedges
and were not material to the results of operations.

The following table provides the fair value of the Company’s open derivative financial instruments as of
April 28, 2002 ond April 29, 2001,

- SR . O .. |
Livestotk 5497 § (351)
Grains ' 16 (20,102)
Gther commadities {345) {139)
Inferest rates (1,116} (441}
Foreign currency (269) —

As of April 28, 2002, no commodity futures contracts exceed twelve months, As of April 28, 2002, the
weighted average maturity of the Company’s interest rate and foreign currenty finondil instruments gre
sixteen ond six months, respectively, with moximum moturitis of 50 ond 12 months, respectively. The
Company believes the risk of defoult or nanperformance on tontracts with counterparties is not significant,
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Note 8 The Company provides substantially olt U.S. and Canadian employess with pension benefits. Salaried

Pension and Other employees are provided benefits based on years of service and average salary levels. Hourly employees are
Retirement Plans pravided benefits of stated amounts for each year of service, The Company’s funding palicy is ta contribute

the minimum amount reguired under government regulations. Pension plon assets are invested primarily
in equities, debt securities, insuronce contracts and money market funds.

The Coripany provides health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees. These plans
are unfunded ond generally pay covered costs reduced by retiree premium contributions, co-payments and
deductibles. The Company retains the right to modify or eliminate these benefits.

The changes in the status of the Company’s pension and postretirement plons, the related components
of pension and postretirement exp"énse and the amounts retognized in the Consolidated Bolante Sheets
are as follows:

FENSION BENEFITS ~  POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

- APRIL 78, 2002 APRIL 26, 2001 * APRIL 26, 2002 APRIL 29, ZDJ]

Chonge in benefit obligation: :

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 480,444 $425,190 $26,783 $26,633

-Service cost . 11,344 11,194 4N 523
Interest tost ' 35,463 32,535 1917 1,916
Plon amendments 5,257 1437 — —_
Employee contributions 1,324 1183 — —
Acquisitions ., . ' — . 36,048 —_ —
Benefits paid . [32,494) {32,366) {1,862) {1,818)
Foreign currenty changes 23n) {7.379) (187) - (739)
Adtuarial loss 18,892 12,602 2,603 268

Benefit obligation at end of yeor 517919 480,444 29,725 26,783

Chenge in plan assets: . - :

Fair vaiue of plan assets at beginning of year 465,551 41,273 — —
Actual return on plan ssets o 32,039 39,422 — —
Acquisitions — 37,447 — —
Employer and emplayee cantributions nnz 18,550 1,862 1818
Foreign currency changes (2722) {8,775) - —
Benefits paid ‘ (32494) (32,366) (1.362) (1,818)

Foir value of plan asseis ot end of year - 474,091 465,551 — —_

Reconciliation of accrued cost: :

Funded status : . {43,828) {14,893} (29,725) {26,783)

Unrecognized actuarial loss {goin) 28,826 1,726 (1,832} {1,053)

Unrecognized prior service cost 14171 14,322 — —
(Accrued) prepaid cost at end of year $ (831) § 1155 $(31,557) 5{27 836)

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial
position consist of: .

Prepaid benefit cost ' $ 39597 $ 38,601 § — § —

Accrued benefit liability (68,138) (64,687} {31,557) {27,838)

Intangible asset 11,237 12,533 —_ —_

Minimum pension liability 16533 - 14,708 — —
Net amount recognized ot end of yeor ! 583 § 1185 §(31,557) $(27,836)
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Companents of net periodic costs include:

PENSION BENERITS
e _Z_OQ‘ L ’2001 2000
Servite cost S 11,344 $ H 194 S 10, 779
Interest cost 35,463 32,535 30,251
Expected return on plan assets {39,623) {36,339) {35,468)
Net amortization 1,08 1315 1174
Metperiodiccost - S 878 S 815§ 67%
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

—— R . Y . S .. ;...
Service tost S 4N § 523 § 59
Interest cast 197 1916 2,006
Net amortization (297) (336} (124)
Nerpenodlctost . |2 091 52 ?03 52478

L A Lol I e TR T

The projected benefit abligations, accumulated benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the
pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan ossets were $208,540, $202,386 and
5139404, respectively, as of Apri? 28, 2002 and $200,367, $192,731 ond $137,316, respectively, os of April 29,
" 2001. As of April 28, 2002, the amount of Company common stock intluded in plan assets was 2,777,048
shares with a market value of $58,596.

In determining the projected benefit obfigation and the accumulated postretirement benefit abligation
in fiscal 2002 and 2001, the foltowing weighted average ossumptions were made:

FPENSION BENERTS POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
I _ _ __APRIL 8, ZUU? e AFRIL n, 2001 o AFEIl 8, ?E_O_?_'_ L APRIL 29 ?UU]
Discount rate 2% 4% 75% 7 5%
Expetted return on assefs 8.6% 8.7% — —
Compensnnon increase 36% - 35% - =

In determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obfigation in fiscal 2002, the assumed annyol
rate of increase in per capita cost of covered health care benefits for U.S. plans was 12.5% and decreased by
0.5% each year unfil leveling at 5.5%. For non-U.S. plans, the assumed ennuef rate of increase was 7.0%
for fiscal 2002 and decreosed by 0.5% each year until leveling ot 5.0%.

Assumed health core cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reparted for the health care
plans. A 1% change in the assumed health care cost trends would have the following effect:

OKE . ONE

PERCENTAGE POINT PERCENTAGE POINT

e o INoest DEREASE
Effect on Iolul of service nnd inferest cost mmponems §$ 133 § (133
Efec on ocumoloted benefit obfgation - SI707  §{1645)
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Note 9
Lease Obligations
ond Commitments

The Company leases fransportation equipment under operating leases ranging from one fo ten years with
options to cancel of earlier dates. Minimum rental commitments under all nonconcelable operating leoses are
os follows:

im YEAR

2003 $ 31,554
2004 27911
2005 . 20,462
2006 16,471
2007 15,837
Thereofter 16,167

$128,402

Rentol expense wos $42434 in fiscal 2002, $39,612 in fistol 2001 ond $32,425 in fiscol 2000. Rentol
expense in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 included $262, $3,228 and $2,566 of contingent maintenonce fees,
respectively.

The Company has o sole and leaseback orrangement for certain hog production facilities occounted for
as capital leases. The arrangement provides for an early termination ot predetermined amounts in fiscal 2004,
Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows:

R YO8 -
2003 ' § 5979
2004 12,097
2005 2,602
2006 1876
2007 , ' 563
Thereafter 1179

24,296
Less amgunts representing interest {3,189)
Present volue of net minimum obligations 21127
Less current portion {4,326)
m[:g_-t—erm copital lease obligations 516,8371 '

As of April 28, 2002, the Company had definitive commitments of $70,883 for capital expenditires
primarily for processed mects expansion and production efficiency projects.

The Company has agreements, expiring from fiscal 2004 through 2013, 10 use cold storage warehouses
owned by partnerships, which are owned 50% by the Company. The Company has agreed to pay prevailing
competitive rates for use of the facilities, subject to aggregate guarantzed minimum annudl fees, in
fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company paid $8,811, 59,079 and 58,505, respectively, in fees for use of
the facilities. As of April 28, 2002 and April 29, 2001, the Compony had investments of $739 and $834,
respectively, in the partnerships.

The Company has an agreement fo provide o $30,000 line of credit Yo Pennexx Foods, Inc. (Pennexx),

a case-ready meat provider, 50% owned by the Company. As of April 28, 2002, Pennexx has outstanding
borrawings of $4,492 on this tine. The Company is guarantor an o $20,000 line of credit of Agroindustrial de!
Noreste, a 50% owned venture in Mexico. As of April 28, 2002, $3,000 was outstanding on the ling of credit.
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Note 10
Related Party Transactions

Note 1l
Gain on the Sale of 1BP, inc.
Common Stock

Note 12
Regulation and Litigation

A director of the Company holds an ownership interest in Murfom Enterprises, LLC (Murfam} and DM Farms,
LLC. Thes entities own farms thet produce hogs under confract to the Company. Murfam olso produces ond
sells feed ingredients to the Company. In fiscal 2002, 2007 and 2000, the Company paid $24,278, $25,236
and $7565, respectively, to these entities for the production of hogs and feed ingredients. In fiscal 2002, 2001
and 2000, the Company wos poid $16,53, $16,325 and §3,382 by these entities for associated farm ond other
support costs. The Company believes that the terms of the arrongements are at prevailing market prices.

A director of the Company is the chairman, president and chief executive officer and o director of Prestage
Farms, Inc. {Prestage). The Company has a long-term agreement to purchase hags from Prestage at prices
that, in the opinion of monageménl, are equivalent 1o markel. Pursuant to this agreement with Prestage, the

"~ Compony purchased $176,443, $157510 and $138,705 of hogs in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

A director of the Company holds a 51% ownership interest in Prestage-Stoecker Farms, Inc. (Stoecker).
This entity purchases feeder pigs, feed, medications and supplies from the Company. Stoecker also
reimburses the Company for certain support tosts. In fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2009, Stoecker poid the Compony
§199,042, $186,812 and $39,508, respectively. As of April 28, 2002 and April 29, 2001, the Company had
trode receivables from Stoecker of 562,566 and 943,579, respectively, and a note reczivable from Stoecker
of $8,095 and $8,823, respectively.

In fiscal 2002 and 2001, the Company sold 2913 and 8,193 shares, respectively, of 1B inc. {IBP} common
stock resulting in nonrecurring, pretax gains of $7008 and $79,019, respectively. Expenses incurred during
fiscal 2001 related to the attempted merger with IBP end the expenses of the subsequent sale of these
shares totaled $7500. The after-tax gains on the sales, net of expenses, cmounted fo 4,254 and $45,200

' for fiscol 2002 and 200, respectively.

Like other participants in the meat processing industry, the Company is subject to various taws and regulations

" administered by federal, state and other government entities, including the Envirenmental Protection Agency

(EPA) and corresponding state agencies as well as the United States Department of Agritulture, the United
Stotes Food ond Drug Administrotion ond the United States Occupational Sofety and Health Administrotion.
Management believes that the Company presently is in compliante with !l these laws and regulations in
all materiol respects and that continued compliance with these standards will not have o material adverse
eftect on the Company’s financial position or results of eperations. In addition, the EPA has recently proposed
to extensively modify its regulations governing confined animol feeding operations. These proposed
modifications are scheduled to be finalized by December 2002 and cauld have a significant impact on the
Compony's hog productian operations. The Company is committed o responsible environmental stewardship
in its operotions.

The Company from time to time recsives notices from regulatory authorities and others-asserting that
it is not in compliance with such laws ond regulations. In some instances, litigation ensues, including the
matters discussed below. Although the suits below remain pending ond relief, if granted, would be costly,
the Compony believes that their ultimate resolution will not hove o moterio) odverse effect on the Company's
financiol position or annual results of operations.
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The Water Keeper Altiance Inc., an enviranmental activist group from the State of New York, has recently
filed or caused to be filed a series of lowsuits against the Company and its subsidiaries and properties,
os destribed below.

In June 2000, Neuse River Foundatian, Richard J. Dove, d/b/ The Neuse Riverkeeper, D. Boulton
Baldridge, d/bfa The Cape Fear Riverkeeper, New River Foundation, Inc., Tom Mattison, d/b/a The New
Riverkeeper, and The Water Keeper Alliance Inc. filed a lawsuit in the General Court of Justice, Superior Court
Division, of the Stote of North Caroling, ogainst the Company, Carroll's Foods, Inc., Brown’s of Caroling, Int.,
Murphy Farms, Inc., Wendell H. Murphy, Sr., Wendell K. Murphy, Jr., ond Joseph W. Luter, l11. The lawsuit
alleged among other things, claims based on negligence, trespass, strict fiability and unfair irade practices
related 1o the operation of swine waste disposal logaons and spray fields in North Caralina. The lawsuit
sought numerous and costly remedies, including injunctive relief to end all use of hog waste disposal lagoons
in North Coroling, unsperified but costly remediotion efforts and other domages. On March 27 200, the
Superior Court granted the Company's mation and dismissed the lowsuit. The plaintiffs noted their appeal
on April 11, 2001. The plointiffs’ appeal has been fully briefed and is awaiting aral argument.

In February 2001, Thomas €. Jones and twelve other individuals filed a lawsuit in the North Carolin
General Court of Justice, Superior Court Division, of the State of North Carcling, ogainst the Company, three
of its subsidiaries, Wendell H. Murphy, Sr., Wendell H. Murphy, Jr., and Joseph W. Luter, I} {the Jones Suit).
The Jones Suit alleged, among other things, claims bosed on negligente, trespass, strict fiability and unfair
trade practices related to the operation of swine waste disposal lagoons and spray fields in North Carolina.
The lawsuit sought aumeraus and castly remedies, including injunctive relief to end all use of hog waste
disposal lagoons in North Caraling, unspecified but costly remediation efforts and other damages. On March 27,
2001, the Superior Court granted the Company’s motion and dismissed the lawsuir. The plaintiffs noted their
appeal on April 17, 2001, The plaintiffs’ appe! has heen fully briefed and is awciting oral argument.

Alsa in Februory 2001, The Woter Keeper Allionce Inc., Thomoas E. Jones d/b/a Newse Riverkeeper, ond
Neuse River Foundation filed two lawsuits in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of North
{arolina against the Company, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, and two of that subsidiary’s hog produttion
fadilities in North Carolina {the Citizens Suits). The Company is named os a defendant in one of these suits.
The Citizens Suits allege, among other things, violations of various environmental laws ot each fu(flity and
the failure to obtain certain federal permits at each facility. The lowsuits seek remediation costs, injunctive
relief and substontial civil penalties. The Compony and its subsidiories’ motions to dismiss were denied and
these cases ore set for trial in October 2003. The Company has iavestigated the allegations made in the
Citizens Suits ond believes that the outcome of these lowsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition or results of aperations. )

The Company hds als received notices from several organizations, including The Water Keeper Alfiance
inc., of their intent to file additional lawsuits against the Company under various federal environmental
statutes ragulating water quality, air quality, and management of solid waste. These threatened lowsuits moy
seek aivil penalties, injunctive relief and remediation costs, However, the Company is unable to determine
whether ony of these notices will result in suit being filed.

In Morch 200), Eugene (. Anderson ond other individuals filed whet purports to.be o closs action in the
United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tompe Division, against the Company and Joseph
W. Luter, }l {the Anderson Suit). The Anderson Suit purports to allege violations of various laws, including
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, based on the Company’ lleged failure to comply
with certain environmenta! laws. The complaint seeks treble damages that ere unspecified. The plaintiffs
filed an amended complaint on May 3, 2001. On February 13, 2002, the District Court granted the Company’s
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Note 13
Net Income Per Share

and Mr. Luter’s motion to dismiss, giving the plaintiffs 20 days within which to file on omended complaint,
On March 15, 2002, the plaintiffs filed their second amended comploint. On June 24, 2002, the District Court
gronted the Company’s and Mr. Luters mation fo dismiss the plaintiffs’ second amended complaint with
prejudice ond issued on order imposing monetary sonctions against the plaintiffs” attorneys. The plaintiffs
noted their appeal on July 24, 2002. The Company continues to believe that the Anderson Suit is baseless
ond without merit, and the Company will defend the suit vigorously.

The Company helieves that all of the litigatian described above represents the agenda of special advocacy
graups including The Water Keeper Alliance Inc. The plaintifs in these cases hove stated that federal and state
environmentq} agencies have declined to bring any of these suits and, indeed, have criticized these agendies.

The Company has entered inta an agreement with the State of North Caroling to commit $15,000 toward
a progrom fo develop environmentally superior swine waste manogement technolagies. If the State of North
Caroling determines that such a technolagy is both environmentally superior and economicaliy feasible to
construct ond operate, then any such technology is required to be implemented on all Compeny-owned hog
farms in North Carolina within three years of a determination. The Company has also ogreed to provide
financial and technical assistance with implementing any technology determined to be environmentally
superior ot its coniract hog farms. It is possible that onte any such determination of environmental superiority
and economic feasihility is made, and any technology identified is implemented, that the existing regulatory
framework under which the Company operates moy be amended fo encompass additional fechnology
developments as well,

The computation for basit and diluted net income per share follaws:

WEIGHTED
HET l“UNE__ AVERAGE S_NA_KE_S ______ P‘EB _Stﬁ_ﬁ‘
~ Fiscal 2002
* Net income per basic share ‘ $196,886 108,056 §1.82
Ettect of dilutive stock options — 2,363 —
tlet income per diluted share §196,886 110,419 S1.78
Fiscal 2001
Net income per basit share §223513 108,360 $2.06
Effect of dilutive stock options ” — 1,786 —
Net income per diluted share _5223,513 110,146 SQ.DBV
Fiscal 2000
Net income per basic share § 75112 97,284 s77
Eftect of dilutive stock options — 1,488 —
Bei intome per diluted shore S 7512 98,772 ] ] 76

In fistal 2002, weighted average shares for the computation of diluted net income per share includes
all outstanding stock optiens. There was no antidilutive effect in fiscal 2002 as all outstanding options had
exercise prices in excess of $2191, the average price of the Company’s stock for the fiscal year.
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]
. Note 14 . The MPG markets its products o food retoilers, distributors, wholesolers, restaurant ond hotel chains, other
Segments ‘ food pracessors and manufacturers of pharmaceuticals ang animal feeds in both domestic and infernational
. morkets. The HPG supplies row materials {live hogs) to the hog slaughtering operations of the Company and
other outside operations. The following tables-present information about the resulis of operations and the
. assets of hoth of the Company’s repartable segments for the fiscal years ended April 28, 2002, Aprit 29, 2001
ond April 30, 2000. The information contains certain allocations of expenses that the Company deems
. regsonable and apprapriate for the evaluation of results of operafions. The Company does not allocate income
. taxes o segments. Segment assets exclude intersegment account balances as the Company believes that
. inclusion would be misleading or not meaningfu!. Management believes all infersegment sales are at prices
8 which opproximate market, '
. o owa ) HOG GENERAL
PROCESSING PRODUCTION CORPORATE _.Lm
. Fiscal 2002 . ‘
Sales $7,046,936 §1,265,339 § — 8,312,275
a8 Intersegment sales _ — (956,156) — (956,15¢)
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 102,407 39,244 6,417 148,068
. Operating profit (loss) 197,991 266,579 (59473} 405,097
Gain on sale of IBP common stock — —_ “(7,008) (7,008)
. Interest expense 55,463 17184 21,678 94,326
. Asssts ‘ 2363129 1,343,655 -4 3,877,998
. Capital expenditures 130,308 37,773 2,929 171,000
| Fiscal 2001 ‘
Sales o 95,584,572 §1,225,820 § — 56,810,392
B Intersegment sales — (910,465) — (910,465)
Depreciation and omortization : . 85,628 49,380 5,042 140,050
. Operating profit {loss)’ 135,205 281,296 (49,228) 367,273
Gain on sale of IBP common stock — —_ (79,019) {79,019)
- Interest expense - 46,607 23547 18,820 88,974
. Assets 1,743,944 1,282,559 "224,385 3,250,888
. Capital expenditures : 124,923 16,047 3150 144120
B b Fiscal 2000 .
Safes $4,984,010 $ 735,328 § - 45,719,338
. Intersegment sales —_ (568,869) — (568,869)
Depreciation ond amortization 73133 41,288 4,543 118,964
. Operating profit {loss) ’ 122,880 99,633 (30,582) 191,931
. Interest expense i 37,941 26,103 7,500 71,944
Assers 1,613,395 1,319,097 19712 3,129,613
| Copital expenditures 91925 7262 1,196 100,383
. 1 GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSES INCLUDE $7500 OF E!PENSES RELATED TO THE ATTEMPTED MERGER WITH IBP AND THE SUBSEQUENT SALE OF 1BF (OMMON STOCK (NOTE H’.
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Note 15
Quarterly Results of
Operations (Unaudited)

The following table presents the Company’s safes and long-lived assets attributed ta operatians in the U.S.
and internaticnal geographic areos. : )

— 2002 2001 .. D
Sales:

us. 56,120,739 84,639,468 $4,016,749
Canoda - 751,222 771,969 632,897
Paland 27519 290,055 344,984
France 208,967 198,435 155,839
J ot o SI36NN9 95899007 95150469

Long-lived ossets at end of year:

us. $1,886,775 $1,576,497 $1,545,204
(onada 252,822 229,690 187,092
Poland 149,392 114,041 90,809
fonee 68,653 66365 73782
..o woewo o _Meo .. foum
Fiscal 2002
Sales §1,636.412 91,670,315 $2,086,325 §1,963,067
_ Gross profit 255418 282,982 305,909 248,619
Net income 56,904 60,512 54,531 24939
Net income per
tommon share’ ‘
Basic s 54 § 58 5 49 § B
Diluted 5§ 5 § 5 § 48 § 2
Fiscal 2001
Sules ' $1,421,326 $1,430,919 $1,537,372 S],SIO,SIG
Gross profit 229,400 234,796 229,493 255,214
Net income 44,569 - 44 576 80,849 53519
Net income per :
common share’
Basic § A § 4 5§ § 50
Diluted . § 48 o S 73 S %

1 PER COMMON SHARE AMOUNTS FOR THE QUARTERS AND FULL YEARS MAVE EACH BEEN CALCULATED SEPARATELY. ACCORDINGLY, QUARTERLY ADUNTS
MAY NOT ADD 70 THE ANHUAL AMOUNYS BECAUSE OF CIFFERENCES N THE WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES QUTSTANDING DURING EACH PERICD.
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Report of Management

The monagement of Smithfield Foods, Inc. and its subsidiaries hos the responsibility for preparing the
accompanying financial stotements and for their integrity and objectivity. The stotements were prepared

in accordonce with generally accepted accounting printiples opplied on a consistent basis. The financial
statements include amounts thot ere based on management’s best estimates ond judgements, Management
olso prepored the other information in this annual repert and is respansible for its accuracy and consistency
with the financial statements.

The Company’s Fiscal 2002 finantial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP independent
auditors, appointed by the audit committee of the board of directors. Mancgement has made available
10 Ernst & Young LLP cli of the Company’ finantiol records ond related dota os well as the minufes of
shareholders’ and directors’ meetings. Furthermore, management believes that all representations made
to Ernst & Young LLP during its oudit were valid ond appropriote.

Menogement has established ond mainteins o system of internal control that provides reosonoble
assurance os fo the integrity and refiabitity of the financial statements, the protection of assets from
unauthorized use or disposition and the prevention and detection of fraudulent financial regorting. The
system of internal control provides for appropriate division of responsitilities among employees and is besed
upon policies and procedures that are communicated to those with significant roles in the financial reporting
protess. Management continually monitors the system of internal control for tompliance and updates this
system os it deems necessary.

Management believes that, as of June 4, 2002, the (ompany’s system of internal control is adequate
10 occomplish the objectives discussed herein.

Joseph W. Luter, Iil

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

C LarryPope  ©

President and
Chief Operating Officer

Danie! G. Stevens
Vice President ond
Chief Finoncial Officer
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Shareholders of Smithfield Foods, Inc.

We have oudited the accompanying cansolidated balance sheet of Smithfietd Foods, Inc. {a Virginia
torporation) and subsidiaries as of April 28, 2002, and the related cansolidated statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financiol statements ore the rasponsibility
of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these finoncial statements based
on our audit. The consolidated balance sheet of Smithfield Foads, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Aprit 29, 2001,
ond the related consolidated statements of income, sharsholders’ equity, and tash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended April 29, 2007, were audited by other auditors whose report dated June 5, 2001,
“expressed on unquelified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our qudit in accordante with quditing standords generally accepted in the United States.
Those stondords require that we plan and perform the oudit fo obtain reasoncble assurance about whether
the financiol statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disctosures in the financiol statements. An audit olso includes assessing
the occounting principles used ond significant estimates made by management, os well as eveluating the
overall finantial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2002 financiol statements referred to above present fairly, in oll moterial respedts,
the financial position of Smithfield Foads, Inc. and subsidicries as of April 28, 2002, and the results of their
aperations and their cash flaws for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generatly
accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective April 30, 2001, the Company
udopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
und Hedging Activities,” as amended, and Statement of Financial Accaunting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” -

Bt ¢ %Mj,ii?

Rithmond, Virginia
June 4, 2002
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Directors

SHITHRELD FOODS, INC.

Robert L. Burrus, Jr.
Chairman ond Partner in the law firm of
McGuireWoods LLP

Carol 1. Crowford
Former Commissioner,
U.S. Internationcl Trade Commission

Ray A. Goldberg
Moffett Professor of Agriculture and Business
at Harvard Business School

George E. Hamllton, Jr.
Retired: President and Chief Gperating Officer of
The Smithfield Packing Company, Incorperated

Joseph W. Luter, Il
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Wendell H. Murphy
Private Investor, former Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of Murphy Farms, Inc.

William H. Prestage
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Prestage Farms, inc,

Melvin 0. Wright

Advisor o PrimeCorp, Inc.,
u Paris merchant bank
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Management

SMITHFIELD FOQDS, INC.

Management Board

Joseph W. Luter, Ill
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

C. Larry Pope
President and Chief Operating Officer, -
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Douglas W. Dodds
President,
Schneider Corporation

Jerry H. Godwin
President,

* Murphy-Brown, LLC

Richard 1. Goodman
President,

* Smithfield Deli Group

Robert G, Holmann, I
President,

© North Side Foods Corp.

Morten Jensen
President,
Animex Sp. 2.0.0.

Roger R. Kapella
President,

 Patrick Cudahy Incorporated

Lewis R. Little
President,
The Smithfield Packing Company, incorporated

Joseph W. Luter, IV

Executive Vice President,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.
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Richard J.M. Poulson
Executive Vice President and
Senior Advisor to the Chairman,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Jean A, Quentin
President,
Smithfield France S.A.5.

Joseph B. Sebring
President,
John Morrell & Co.

Timothy A, Seely
President,
Gwaltney of Smithfield, Ltd.

Robert A, Sharpe Ii
President, Internotional Operations,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Robert A, Slavik
Vice President, Sules and Marketing,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Daniel G. Stevens
Vice President and Chief Finonciol Officer,
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Rabert F. Urell

Senior Vice President, Corporate Engineering
and Environmental Affairs,

Smithfield Foods, Inc.

Richard V. Vesta
President,
Pockerland Holdings, Inc.




Corporuie Officers

loseph W. Luter, !II .
Choirman ond Chief Executive Officer

C. Larry Pope
President and Chief Operating Officer

Joseph W, Luter, IV
Executive Vice President

Richard J.M. Poulson-
Executive Vice President and
Senior Advisor to the Chairman

Robert F, Urell
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and Environmental Affairs

Robert A, Sharpe II
President, International Operctions

Daniel G. Stevens
Vice President ond Chief Finando! OFficer

* Mansour T. Zadeh
Chief information Officer

Elaine C. Abicht
Vice President, Purchasing

Douglas P. Anderson
Vice President, Rendering

Raoul J. Baxter
Vice President, Corporate Development

Bart Ellis
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Jerry Hostetter
Vice President, investor Relotions
ond Corporate Communications

Jeftrey M. Luckman
Vice President, Livestock Procurement

William E. Pierce
Vice President, Information Technology

Lawrence L. Shipp
Vice President, Lonistics

Robert A. Stavik
Vice President, Sales and Marketing

Dhamu Thamodaran
Vice President, Price-Risk Management
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and Government Relafions
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Form 10-K Report

Investor Relations

The Common Stack of the Company has traded on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “SFD”
since September 28, 1999. Prior to that the Common Stock traded on The Nesdog National Marke? under
the symbol “SFDS.” The following table shows the high and low sales prices of the Commaon Stock of the

Company for ecch quarter of fiscol 2002 ond 2001

2002 2001
e - HIGH oW HIGH . ow
Firs $22.50 $16.83 §14.98 §10.9
Second 23.86 19.25 14.58 - 166
Third 2693 19.85 16.65 1332
Forh . %25 2025 19.05 1378

Smithfield Foods, Inc. hos not poid dividends on its common stock since its incorporation.

- Smithfield Foods, Inc.
. 200 Commerta Strest

Smithfield, VA 23430
757-365-3000

Computershare Investor Services, LLC

* 2 North LoSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60802
312-588-4700

Ernst & Young LLP

One James Center, Suite 1000
901 East Cary Street
Richmond, VA 23219

The Annual Meeting of Shoreholders will be held on August 28, 2002 ot 2 p.m.
at The Jefferson Hotel, Franklin and Adams Streets, Richmond, Virginia.

Copies of the Company’s Form 10-K Annual Report are ovailable without charge,
upon written request to: '

Corporate Secrstary

Smithfield Foods, Inc.

200 Commerce Street

Smithfield VA 23430

[nquiries about investor reloted information should be directed to:
Vice President of Investor Relations

Smithfield Foods, inc.

499 Park Avenue, 5th Floor

New York, NY 10022

212-758-2100
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